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CHAIRMAN’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Summary

The group has declared a profit for the year of $3 6m
{2006 toss of $1 Om) or Og¢ per share (2006 O¢) The
constituents of this profit are a $1 Sm profit at
Rosemnont Reinsurance Ltd {“Rosemont Re”) and a

$2 1m prafit within the rest of the group The group
profit 1s due to $3 8m of income recognised 1n respect
of the deferred consideration from the sale of Goshawk
Dedicated (No 2} Limited ("GD2")

Operationally the group has progressed from the crisis
management discussed in last year’s report However, In
terms of running off the balance sheet we are behind
where we had hoped to be and whilst the gross reserve
for losses and loss adjustment expenses has reduced
from $274m to $167m and the actuary’s range of likely
outcomes has reduced from $91m to $43m the rump
contains a growing proportion of problematic and
volatile contracts

The progress that has been made has been largely down
to a stronger management team in Bermuda and two
particular projects undertaken during the year by
Rosemont Re, namely an extensive program of cedant
audits and a mugration of the accounting system to one
more suited to a run-off company

Review of the year

An extensive program of cedant audits was initiated at
the start of the year and will continue into 2008 Ideally,
such audits would have highlighted areas of saving but
so far has been Just as likely to uncover bad news as
good

The previous accounting system at Rosemont Re was
built around broker led business and made 1t difficult to
get a complete picture of monies owed to or by a
paruicular cedant or reinsurer The decision to migrate to
a more suitable accounting system was a big one and
involved a great deal of work duning the year but its
completion has meant a marked improvement in the
speed of collections made from reinsurers, a greater
degree of confidence in negotiating with cedants and a
shortening of the reporting cycle However, as with the
cedant audits, the migration highlighted as much bad
news as good, particularly in the areas of recevable and
payable balances

Outside Rosemont Re the focus has remained on the
bank debt and whilst sorme early repayments have been
possible, principally from the collection of the war
consortium balances, the debt has only reduced from
$20 9m to $16 1m Of increasing concern s the
additional interest charge that becomes due from 1 May
2008 at 12 5% per annum This additional rate was
agreed at a ime when the group debt was distressed

but, with the increasing likehhood of & GD2 recovery,
the risk prermium charged appears excessive and so the
board 15 fooking to re-market the debt However, given
the turmoil in the debt markets there 15 no certainty that
this will be achieved

The income statement and balance sheet are discussed
in greater detall within the enhanced business review
section of the directors' report but in general terms
show a static picture at Rosemont Re with any
improvements being off-set by losses Qutside
Rosemont Re further progress has been made in the
collection of the GD2 deferred sale proceeds, in respect
of which up to $8 2m could be recewved during 2008

Arbitration

One particular area of continued frustration 1s in the
area of losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable
to the extent that Rosemont Re recently imbiated
arbitration proceedings against one of its reinsurers
which has failed to settle $12 5m of bilied losses
recoverable, net of related reinsurance premiums
payable Losses and loss adjustment expenses
recoverable include a further $2 Om of balances that will
become due for settlement In the near future, giving a
total at nsk of $14 5m

In response to the group’s arbitration demand, the
reinsurer has filed a defence of claim and 1s disputing its
labihty to pay the amounts both due and expected to
become due

Management believes that the reinsurer’s position 15
without merit and 15 aggressively pursuing the
arbitration for full recovery of the amounts due plus
interest and costs An adverse award from the
arbitration would be materal to the group and could
cause a breach of the net worth covenants upon which
the group’s borrowings are conditional

Outlook

Under current conditions, should any surplus become
distnbutable by the group it would not be before the
end of 2009

e — NPy 00,

Michael Dawson
Chief executive

Rory Macnamara
Chairman

24 April 2008
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007

Results and Dividends
The results of the year show a profit on ordinary activities before and after taxation of $3 6m (2006 loss $1 0m)

The directors recommend that $nmil dividends be paid (2006 $nil)

Principal Activities
The group's principal activities are the orderly run-off of Rosemont Re, a Bermuda based reinsurance company, and
the realisation of the non-Rosemont Re assests

Enhanced business review

The group has declared a post tax profit of $3 6m (2006 loss of $1 Om) for the year ended 31 Decernber 2007,
which equates to a profit per share of 0¢ (2006 0¢) The key constituents of this profit are a $1 5m profit at
Rosemont Re and a $2 1m profit within the rest of the group

At Rosemont Re, the profit of $1 5m has stemmed from net premiums earned of $2 Om, offset by a loss of $0 5m
ansing from mvestment income of $10 8m less expenses of $11 3m

For the rest of the group the profit of $2 1m anses from income of $6 3m, of which GD2 income of §3 8m was the
single biggest contributor, less finance costs of $1 4m and expenses of $2 8m

Investment income for the year was $11 9m agaminst $13 6m last year, the decreasing cash balances as claims are
paid and falls In the US Federal Reserve rate being the contributing factors

General and administrative expenses have fallen by $5 Om to $12 6m This has been the result of savings across all
categories with the exception of outsourced costs which rose by $3 4m to $4 8m mainly driven by this being the first full
year of the provision of run-off services by PRO Insurance Solutions Limited, having been appointed on 23 Octcber the
previous year, as well as the cedant audits and change of accounting system discussed within the chairman and chief
executive’s report under ‘review of the year’ The $2 7m decrease in legal and professional fees reflects the greater
operational stability within the group, as does the fall of 30 5m paid to our auditors The savings within administrative
expenses of $1 8m stem from a number of sources induding the decision to surrender the lease of the London office
early and move to cheaper premises, reduced banking charges following the renegotiation of the group loans and the
write back of an old creditor balance Staii costs have fallen by $2 Om, partly as the Rosermont Re team has reduced but
manly because last year included a one-off charge of $1 5m following the wnite-off of the share based compensation
reserve However, this year's charge has been increased by 30 6m to reflect a provision for the retention and incentive
award that potentially applies for the first ime this year and 1s discussed in greater detail within the directors’
remuneration report

Finance costs were $1 4m against $5 4m for last year due to three favourable factors The capital amount
outstanding having been reduced by a number of repayments during the year, the absence of the additional default
margin the banks were able to charge for most of the last year and the lower average US$ London Inter-Bank Rate
on which the rate charged 15 based

The net asset value of the group stands at $71 8m (2006 $67 6m) at 31 December 2007 which equates to a net
asset value per share of 8¢ (2006 8¢) This represents a movement of $4 2m during the year resulting from the
profit of $3 6m discussed above and currency translation differences on the GB£ element of the UK subsidiaries
brought forward, that I1s taken strasght to reserves and not through the income statement

The independent actuary has produced a range of reserves for Rosemont Re The actuary’s resulting range from low
to high net esttmates has reduced from $91m last year to $43m this year The range of estimated habifities is provided
in an attempt to quantify some of the uncertainty in estimating ulttmate losses and does not present the bounds of all
possible outcomes Indeed it 1s possible that the final cost to settle claims may still be more than the available capital
resources
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Previous reports have discussed the sale undertaken by previous management of GD2, which had incurred losses
through 1ts underwriting as a corporate name at Uoyd's For the sale o receve consideration a number of conditions
need to be met One of these conditions 1s that the purchasers make sufficient profits against which the losses can be set
at which point the relevant funds are deposited into escrow At 31 December 2007 the receipts into escrow, after
adjusting for the time value of money based on when the asset 1s expected 10 be received, along with the related interest
earned on balances, totalled $18 7m (2006 %13 7m) against which a provision for impairment of $5 Om (2006 $3 8m)
15 carried The provision aims to reflect the nsk of non-recovery, see note 16

Key performance indicators (“KPls")
The unusual arcumstances of the company make a number of the standard KPIs less relevant and so management
has chosen to focus on preservation of shareholders’ capital

The two biggest threats to the preservation of shareholders’ capital are a detenioration of the reserves at Rosemmont Re
(through an increase of the ultimate cost of the losses or non-collection of the reinsurance asset} and a breach of any
of the banking covenants

Deterioration of the reserves at Rosemont Re gives rise to a diminution of the net asset value per share but also a
potential breach of the net asset covenants required by the banks As discussed above, the net asset value of
Rosemont Re remained stable during the year

Breach of the banking covenants creates the nsk that the banks will move to exercise thewr rights under the security
and that an accelerated exit leads to a diminution in shareholders’ funds The banking covenants were renegotiated
during 2006 and, because a deternoration of Rosemont Re's net asset value in the first half of the year might have
led to a further breach, they were further amended on 16 Aprit 2007 There has been no need for further
renegotiations since 16 Apnl 2007

Late reporting was previously identfied as a KPi, but has now been removed to reflect the group’s improved
operational status

Financial nsk management objectives and policies
The directors have set out their objectives and policies Iin the note 29 Risk management policies

Significant post balance sheet events
There were no significant post balance sheet events

Future Developments
The group will continue to run-off Rosemont Re and manage the group’s non-Rosemont Re assets and liabilities,
particularly the deferred consideration from the sale of GD2, the group debt and the restncted cash resources

Substantial Shareholdings
At 24 Aprii 2008, the company had been notified of holdings of 3% or more of the company’s voting rights shown
below

Mumber of ordinary % of

shares of 1p each voling nghts

Phoenix Asset Management Limited* 305,445,790 3472
Credit Suisse Securities (Europe Limited) 75,667,070 860
SC Fundamental 63,297,209 720
Funds under the discretionary management of Laxey Partners Limited 46,518,233 529

* Waiver of the requirements of Rule 9 of the Takeover Code was obtained at the Extracrdinary General Meeting held on
26 September 2006
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Directors and their Interests
The directors of the company are shown in the corporate governance report Mo director had any direct interest in
the share capital of the company, as defined by the Compamies Act 1985

R Canham 1s an investor in the Phoerix UK Fund, which 1s managed by Phoenix Asset Management Limited the
company's largest sharehoider He i1s a nominee of Phoenix Asset Management Limited and so 15 not considered to
be independent

No director has any interest in the shares of any subsidiary company

Each of the directors has a deed of indemnity granted by the company These were updated to reflect current
legislation and signed on 8 April 2008

Charitable and Political Donations
No donations have been made during the year (2006 $Ntl)

Staff numbers
The average monthly number of employees of the group during the year, including executrve directors, was 6 (2006 9)

Share Incentive Plan
No directors had interests in the Share Incentive Plan

Auditors
Each of the persons who Is a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that
— 5o far as the director 15 aware, there 1s no refevent audit information of which the company’s auditors are
unaware, and
- the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make humself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with Section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed therr willingness to continue in office as auditors and a resolution to reappoint them
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

Statement of Supplier Payment Policy

The group does not follow any specific code or standard on payment practice, however, it 1s the intention of the
group to ensure that all of its suppliers of goods and services are paid in accordance with contractual and legal
obligations The average trade creditors of the group, which excludes reinsurance creditors, represented
approximately 44 creditor days (2006 83) based on the ratio of trade creditors to the amounts invoirced dunng the
year

Going Concern
The directors have concluded that both the group and company accounts should be produced on a going concern
basis and have set out their grounds for continuing to do so in note 1 of both the group and company accounts

Capital structure

Detalls of the Company’s issued share capital are set out in note 24 All of the Company’s 1ssued ordinary shares are
fully pard up and rank equally in all respects The nights attached to them, in addrtion to those conferred on therr
holders by law, are set out in the Company’s articles of association {“the articles”) There are no restrictions on the
transfer of ordinary shares or on the exercise of voting nghts attached to them, except (i} where the Company has
exerased its nght to suspend their voting nights or to prohibit their transfer following the omission of their holder or
any person interested in them to provide the Company with information requested by it in accordance wath Part 22
of the Companies Act 2006 or () where therr helder 15 precluded from exercising voting nghts by the FSA's lisiing
rules or the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers Rules about the appointment and replacement of directors are set
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out In the articles Changes to the articles must be approved by shareholders passing a speaal resolution The
directors’ powers are conferred on them by UK legislation and by the articles Currently the directors have no
authority to effect purchases of the company's shares on 1ts behalf and, in order to do so, the directors would
require the prior approval of shareholders at a generat meeting Other than the condition set out within the final
paragraph on page 9, there are no agreements between any group company and any of its employees or any
director of the company which provide for compensation to be paid to the employee or director for termination of
employment or for loss of office as a consequence of a takeover of the company

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in relation to the financal statements
The directors are responstble for preparing the annual report, directors’ remuneration report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year The directors are required
by the IAS Regulation to prepare the group financial statements under International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union The group financial statements are also required by law to be properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the |AS Regulation

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS financial statements present fairly for each financial year the
company's financial posttion, financial performance and cash flows This requires the fatthful representation of the
effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition cntena for
assets, habilities, ncome and expenses set out In the International Accounting Standards Board's ‘Framework for the
preparation and presentation of financial statements’ In wrtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be
achieved by comphance with all apphicable IFRSs However, directors are also required to
- properly select and apply accounting policies,
~ present information, Including accounting policies, N a manner that provides relevant, rehable, ceomparable
and understandable information, and
- provide additional disclosures when comphance with the specific requirements 1n IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s
financial position and financial performance

The directors have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements In accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) The parent
company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affarrs of the company
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are reguired to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

— make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

— state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures

disclosed and explaned in the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial positicn of the company and enable them to ensure that the parent company financial statemenis
comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rrregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and finanaal information included
on the company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemnination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

By order of the Board -/\S' é”M

Capita Company Secretanal Services Limited

Company Secretary
24 Apnil 2008
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The directors report on the company’s compliance with the 2006 Combined Code on Corporate Governance, (“the
code”™)

Following the resignation of the previous board duning November 2005 the group ceased to be comphant with the
aspects of the code noted below and has remained so since that date due to the rminimal size of the board that has
taken on responsibility for group operations The speafic principles with which the directors have not complied are

A) The board In that no audit, nomination or remuneration committee exists,
A3 Board balance and independence In that the board did not have a majority of non-executive directors,

A4 Appointments to the board in that the current directors expect to see the company through to conclusion
and so no succession plans are (in place,

A6 Performance evaluation 1n that no documented procedures exst, and
C3 Audit committee and auditors 1n that no audit committee exists

However, the diwectors consider that they have established internal systems and controls appropriate to the current
arcumstances of the company These have been in operation throughout the year and up to the date of the annual
report These include, but are not hmited to, regular internal reporting and minuted board meetings along with clear
expense authorisation levels and service contracts with key providers of outsourced services Where outsource
arrangements exist they are controlled by monitoring the key deliverables defined within the related service

contract

The directors are responsible for the company’s systems of internal control and for reviewing the effectiveness of
these systems, which are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against materiat avoidable loss
or misstatement of financial Information They are also designed to manage rather than eliminate the rnisk of failure
to achieve business objectives

Whilst there 1s no remuneration committee, the incentive programmes for all the directors were agreed at the EGM
held on 26 September 2006, and have not changed since that date However, the directors now feel that the
scheme currently in force does not accommodate all possible outcomes for the group and 1t 1s their intention to
propose a vanatien at the forthcoming AGM

The following indwiduals served as directors of the company during the year

RP Macnamara Charman Non-executive
MG Dawson Chief executive Executive
PJ Dixon-Clarke Finance director Executive
R Canham® Non-executive Non-executive

6) Appointed on 27 March 2007
The board’s role Is to ensure the orderly run-oif of Rosemont Re and to preserve shareholders’ value

No board committees existed dunng the year, the directors’ attendance at scheduled board meetings was as

follows
Board
meetings held &

Number
attended
RP Macnamara (Board chairman) 6
MG Dawson 6
P) Dixon-Clarke S
R Canham™ 4

(1) Appointed on 27 March 2007 after the first two meetings had taken place

As stated above, following the appointment of the existing board dunng November 2005 the group ceased to be
compliant with the code and has remained so since that date due to the minimal size of the board that has taken
on responsibility for group operations There is currently no agreed timetable for returning to full compliance
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R Canham was appointed to the board on 27 March 2007 as a non-executive director, as he 15 a nominee of the
company’s largest shareholder he is not considered to be independent

Andrew Fox resigned as the company secretary on 26 February 2007 and was replaced by Capita Company
Secretarial Services Limited

The terms of the contracts for the non-executive directors can be obtained from the company
As none of the directors are considered independent there can be no senior independent director

Directors’ biographies

Rory Macnamara, aged 53

Hawving qualified as an accountant with Price Waterhouse, Rory began a seventeen year career in corporate finance
at Morgan Grenfell & Co Limited in 1981 during which he rose to become Head of Advisory and deputy chairman
During his time at Morgan Grenfell he advised on a large range of pubhc and private M&A transactions, fund
raisings and flotations as well as gaining fixed income experience working with debt adwisory teams, most notably
during his secondment to Eurotunnel He joined Lehman Brothers as Head of UK Coverage in 1999 and has been an
independent consultant since 2002 Rory 1s chairman of Izodia PLC and a director of Raven Mount plc and holds
various other company directorships Rory became chairman of Goshawk in November 2005

Michael Dawson, aged 46

Michael was the founder of Cox Insurance Holdings Plc, regarded as one of the leading personal hnes insurers in the
UK, which, during his tenure, between 1934 and 2002, developed into a listed business with 2,000 employees and
over one million customers He is an active underwnter at Lloyd’s and 1s registered to the highest insurance level
with the FSA During the period from 1997 to 2000 Michael served as a member of the Counal of Lloyd’s He was
chairman of Kinnect Holdings Plc, and is director of several other companies Michael joined GoshawkK as chief
executive in November 2005

Peter Dixon-Clarke, aged 42

Peter 15 aiso group finance director for Rockhopper Exploration pic, an ol and gas explorer with concessions in the
North Falkland basin He qualified as a chartered accountant with Deloitte & Touche LLP in the financial services
group and left in 1995 to work at what is now Amlin plc to head up the financial affairs of the group’s biggest
division, seeing it through the Lioyd's market turnaround and subsequent group flotation Peter joined GoshawK in
March 2006

Roger Canham, aged 43

Roger graduated as a surveyor at Reading University before taking up a position with Mikko Secunities Europe m
their fixed income division for three years He then moved on to work n and grow a food distnbution business for
twelve years, uftimately becoming the owner and exiting 1in 2002 by way of a trade sale to an international food
distribution business, in which he then took an executive board role for the next year Roger then went on to found
a number of property related businesses, which he has continued to grow, along with developing interests in a
number of early stage businesses He joined the board of Goshawk as a non-executive director In March 2007

&r——

RP Macnamara
Chairman

24 April 2008
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

This report sets out the group’s policy on the remuneration of executive and non-executive directors, together with
details of directors’ remuneration packages and service contracts

Unaudited part of the remuneration report

Remuneration committee
All the members of the remuneration commitiee resigned as directors of the company on 18 November 2005 and
the committee ceased to exist from that date

Remuneration policies

Following the resignation of the committee during 2005 the group has had no formal remuneration policy,
however, the incentive programmes of the directors commenced at the time were approved at the EGM held on
26 September 2006 and have not changed since that date

Remuneration packages - salaries or fees only (see also below)
The remuneration of RP Macnamara consisted of fees invoiced monthly to the group on the basis of £70,000 per
annum

The remuneration of MG Dawson consisted of a salary of £150,000 per annum, of £100,000 per annum for
PJ Dixon-Clarke and £25,000 per annum for R Canham

The amount payable on termination of contract by the company 1s set out in the final paragraph of page 9

Bonus payments
Bonus payments made dunng the year are set out in the table within the audited part of this report

Incentive programimes
In addition to fees and salanes, the directors, excluding R Canham, are incentivised by two bonus schemes, as set
out In the group bonus plan, an annual bonus scheme and a retention and incentive award

Annual benus scheme
The group, as a reward and incentive for the successful management of its run-off, makes avallable bonuses to the
directors

For each of the 2006, 2007 and 2008 financial years each director Is entitled to a bonus equal to 45% of the fees
and/or salary pard to him by the group, provided that the company 1s solvent at the end of the relevant financial
year (as determined by the audited consolidated accounts of the group for that financial year)

In additton, each director shall be eligible for a non-contractual discretionary bonus of up to 25% of the fees and/or
salary paid to him by the group, provided that the company is solvent at the end of the relevant financal year (as
deterrnined by the audited consolidated accounts of the group for that financial year) Payment of the bonus shali
be at the sole and absclute discretion of the board of directors of the company and shall be determmned by
reference to the performance of the relevant director in the previous twelve months

Half of any bonus paid to the directors shall be deferred until the publication of the audited consolidated accounts
of the group for the financial year which 15 two years after the financal year in respect of which the bonus 1s due
and shall be conditional upon the company being solvent at the year end of that second financial year (as
determined by the relevant audited consolidated accounts of the group)

Under the terms of the group bonus plan, the payment of any bonus is subject to and conditional upon the
company having sufficient funds to make such payment without matenat detriment to 1ts solvency, as determined by
the board of directors of the company in their absolute discretion

Retention and Incentive Award

The scheme currently in force Is set out below and 15 as agreed by shareholders at the EGM on 26 September 2006
However, the directors now feel that the scheme does not accommaodate all possible outcomes for the group and 1t
15 their intention to propose a vanation at the forthcoming AGM




GoshawK Insurance Holdings plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2007

In addition to bonuses, the directors shall be entitled under the group bonus scheme to a “Retention and Incentive
Award” equal to 0 15 times the "NAV Increase”, where the "NAV Increase” equals {A+B-E) — (C+D) and

A = esther (1) the net asset value of the group, as set out in the annual audited consolidated accounts of the group
as at 31 December of the financial year in respect of which the NAV Increase 15 being calculated, including any
distrbutable profit of the company to the extent that the same has been distnibuted or declared for distribution
and 15 reflected in the audited consolidated accounts of the group as at that date, or () in the event that a
general offer has been made for the entire 1ssued share capital of the company which has been declared
unconditional as to acceptances, the total amount receivable by shareholders pursuant to such general offer,

B = the aggregate of any amounts distnbuted to its shareholders by the company to the extent not included in A,

C = the net asset value of the company as stated within the audited consolhdated accounts for the group as at
31 December 2005,

D = the net proceeds of the Rights Issue, and

E = the net asset value of Rosement Re as at the end of the relevant financial year, as stated in Rosemont Re’s
annual regulatory return to the BMA for that financial year

This “Retention and incentive Award” shall be allocated between the Beneficiaries and PRO as follows

Beneficiary Percentage
MG Dawson 20%
RP Macnamara 13 334%
P) Dixon-Clarke 6 666%
Rosemont Re directors 30%
PRO Insurance Solutions Limited 26 666%
See below 3334%

100%

The remaining 3 334% of the “Retention and Incentive Award"” shall be allocated to the directors and/or employees
of the members of the group at the sole and absolute discretion of the directors

The “Retention and Inceniive Award” shall be calculated by reference to the audited consolidated accounts for the
group for the 12 months ended 31 December 2007 and each subsequent financial year and shall only be payable to
the extent that the NAV Increase 15 availlable for distribution to Shareholders If a proportion of the NAV increase 1s
unavailable for distribution the "Retention and Incentive Award” payable in respect of any financial year shall be
reduced by the same propartion

No outstanding bonus or “Retention and Incentive Award” shall be payable to a Beneftaiary if his employment or
directorship 1s terminated by the company for cause (or if notice of such termimation has been given) or he
voluntanly terrmnates his employment or resigns his directorship with the company without "Good Reason” (as
defined in the group Bonus Plan) or if notice of such termination has been given

If a Beneficiary has his employment or directorship terminated by the company without cause or terminates his
directorship for “Good Reason” (as defined in the Group Bonus Plan) he shall be entitled to any accrued Bonus and
his share pro rated by time (by reference to the period 1 January 2006 to 30 September 2009) of the “Retention
and Incentive Award” (If any) to the extent not already paid

If a Beneficiary terminates his directorship because of a change of control of the company or by way of a general
offer for the entire 1ssued share capital of the company which has been dectared unconditional he shall be entitled
to prompt payment of any Bonus to which he 1s entitled, payment of which has been deferred as referred to above
and/or his share of the “Retention and Incentive Award”, which shall be deemed 1o be the greater of the actual
“Retention and Incentive Award"” {as calculated above) and 31 Sm (the $1 5m equating to an increase in the net
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

asset value of the company of $10m) Conseguently, it 1s possible under the terms of the group banus plan for the
directors, in the event of a change of control of the company, to receive a payment based on a deemed increase in
the net asset value of the company of $10m in arcumstances where there has been no actual increase n the net
asset value or the actual increase 1s less than $10m

The prowsions in the group bonus plan relating to the directors, the amounts payable to them thereunder, the
maximum entitlement of any one director and the basis for determining the director’s entitlement to, and the terms
of, the benefits to be provided to them thereunder cannot be altered without the prior approval of shareholders in
general meeting

Benefits under the scheme will not be pensionable

Long Term Incentive Plan

A Long Term Incentive plan (*LTIP") was established in November 1999 to better align the interests and efforts of
executive directors and certain senior underwriters with the group’s objectives All the participants in the LTIP have
since left the company and their entitlernent has lapsed accordingly The matched shares currently remain 1n trust

Service Contracts

None of the current directors had a previous service contract with any member of the group The current contracts
are open-ended but terminable by either party with three months notice PJ Dixon-Clarke and MG Dawson served
as employees throughout the year

Performance

The following line graph details for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 and for each of the previous two
financia! years the total shareholder return (TR} on a holding of the company’s ordinary shares compared to the
corresponding change in a hypothetical holding of shares in the FTSE All-share non-life index The index was
selected because, until 2005, the company was a constituent member
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Audited part of the report
Fees, salary and benefits

The salary and benefits of the directors of the company for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007 were as

follows
Salary Discretionary  Non-discreuonary 2007 2006
or fees bonus bonus Total Total
$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000
Executive directors
MG Dawson 299 33 67 399 357
PJ Dixon-Clarke 199 21 45 265 307
Non-executive directors
RP Macnamara 139 16 31 186 231
R Canham 39 - - 39 -
676 70 143 839 895

The accounts contain a provision of $630k In respect of the retention and incentive award Whilst the payment of
this 1s based on the final outcome and is therefore deferred until any distnbution i1s payable to shareholders, the
group’s net asset value has mcreased to the point a prowvision 1s required on the basis outlined In the table below

2007 2006

$°000 $ 0G0
Group net asset value at the year end 71,788 67,598
Less group net asset value at 31 December 2005 (28,685) (28,685)
Less funds invested 1n 2006 (39,532) {39,532)
Plus provision already made 630 -
Base value for calculation 4,201 (619)
15% of base value 630 -
Due to the directors 40% 252 -

Of the $630k provided, only 40% 15 due to the directors, whose actual shares are set out earlier within this

renumeration report

The services of RP Macnamara are provided by Fenford Limited, of which he 15 a director and shareholder

Details of directors’ interests and the group benus plan are included in the unaudited section of this report

All of the fees, salanes or bonuses outlined above are set and paid in GBf

By order of the board

a\/———.—_

RP Macnamara
Chairman

24 Apnil 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
GOSHAWK INSURANCE HOLDINGS PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of Goshawk Insurance Holdings plc for the year ended

31 December 2007 which comprise the consclidated income statement, the consohdated balance sheet, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 29
These group finanaal statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein We have also
audsted the information in the directors’ remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Goshawk Insurance Holdings plc for
the year ended 31 December 2007 That report 1s modified by the inclusion of an emphasis of matter paragraph

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume respensibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibiities for preparing the annual report, the directors’ remuneration report and the group
financial statemenits in accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland}

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view, whether the
group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4
of the IAS Regulation and whether the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our
opimion the information given in the directors’ report 15 consistent with the group financal statements The
infarmation given in the directors’ report includes that speafic information presented in the chairman’s and chief
executive’s statement that 1s cross referred from the enhanced business review section of the directors’ report

In addition we report to you if, in our opimion, we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit, or if infermation specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 15 not
disclosed

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company’s compliance with the nine prowisions
of the 2006 Combined Code speafied for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we
report if 1t does not We are not required to consider whether the board's statements on internal control cover all
risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s corporate governance procedures or its
risk and control procedures

We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited
group financial statements The other information comprises only the chairman’s and chief executive’s statement,
the directors’ report, the unaudited part of the directors’ remuneration report and the corporate governance
statement We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
matenal inconsistencies with the group financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other
information outside the annual report

Basis of audit opimion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the group financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and jJudgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
group finanoal statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s arcumstances,
consistently appled and adequately disclosed
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
GOSHAWK INSURANCE HOLDINGS PLC - continued

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financiat
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited are free from materal misstaternent,
whether caused by fraud or other wrregulanty or error In forrming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the group financial statements and the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited

Opinion
in our opinion
- the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then
ended,
- the group financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation,
- the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and
- the information given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the group financial statements

Emphasis of matter — Loss and loss adjustments expenses and associated reinsurance recoveries

Without qualifying our opinien, we draw attention to the disclosures made in note 29(e) to the accounts concerning
the significant level of uncertainty relating to the reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses and the
anticpated reinsurance recoveries on those losses The ultimate net habihty of the loss and loss adjustrnent expense
reserve, currently estimated as $122m, will vary as a result of subsequent information and events and these may
result in significant adjustrnents to the amounts provided It 15 not possible for us to quantify the potential effects of
such adjustments

Emphasis of matter - Going Concern

Without qualifying our opmion, we draw attention to the disclosures made 1n note 1 to the accounts concerning
the abulity of the group to continue as a going concern In note 1 the directors have described the restrictions
surrounding the group’s working capital and the fact that the successful completion of any planned mitigating
actions 1s uncertain These conditions indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty which may cast sigrificant
doubt about the group’s ability to continue as a going concern The financial statements do not include the
adjustments that would result if the group was unable to continue as a going concern

} el,- e Toscd w
eloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, United Kingdom

24 Apnl 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006
Notes $ 000 $ 000

Revenue
Gross premiums wnitten 4 2,848 6,007
Change in unearned premiums reserve - 20,828
Gross premiums earned 2,848 26,835
Reinsurance premiums ceded (830) {2,553}
Change in deferred reinsurance premiums ceded - (5,444)
Reinsurance premiums ceded (830) {7,997)
Net premiums earned 2,018 18,838
Net investment income 5 11,854 13,591
Net realised gains on financial assets - 332
QOther income & 5,084 9,192
Net foreign exchange gain 156 1,642
Total net revenues 19,112 43,595
Expenses
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 7 {6) 14,244
Net acquisition expenses 8 1,540 7,378
General and administrative expenses 9 12,618 17,587
Finance costs 11 1,371 5,363
Total expenses 15,523 44,572
Profit/{loss) before tax 3,589 (977)
Income tax expense 12 - -
Net profit/(loss) after tax arising from continuing activities

and attributable to equity holders of the parent company 3,589 (977)
Earnings per share: basic and diluted - cents 13 0 (0}
Weighted average number of common shares — basic and diluted 13 877,358,122 318,313,035
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006
Re-prasented™
Notes $'000 $ 000
Assets
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 14 44,386 132,497
Reinsurance balances recevable 15 32,661 55,686
Other recewvables 16 13,793 14,274
Accrued investment income 151 482
Prepard expenses and ather assets 17 179 137
Cash and cash equivalents 18 203,115 234,335
Total assets 294,285 437.411
Liabilities
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 19 166,811 273,552
Reinsurance balances payable 20 32,326 65,165
Loans payable 21 16,107 20,901
Accounts payable and accrued habilites 23 7,253 10,195
Total liabihities 222,497 369,813
Equity
Share capital 24 28,922 28,922
Share prermum 307,489 307,489
Retained losses (264,623) (268,813)
Equity 71,788 67,598
Total habilhities and equity 294,285 437,411
Net assets per share - cents 8 8

* The re-presentation is discussed in note 2 3

The accounting policies and notes on pages 18 to 42 are an integral part of these financial statements

The financiai statements were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the board of directors on 24 April 2008 and

were signed on Its behalf by

NAALLES

MG Dawson
Chief executive

7\

ixon-Clarke
Finance director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006
Notes $'000 $'000
Share Capital
Balance, beginnung of year 24 28,922 15,745
Additional shares 15sued - 13,177
Balance, end of year 28,922 28,922
Share premium
Balance, beginning of year 307,489 283,584
Additional paid-in capital on shares 1ssued - 26,355
Issue costs - (2,450)
Balance, end of year 307.489 307,489
Other reserves
Balance, beqinning of year - 9,952
Transfer to retained losses - (8,852)
Balance, end of year - -
Reserve for share based compensation
Balance, beginning of year - (1,747)
Share based expense recognised In income statement - 1,532
Currency translation differences - 215
Balance, end of year - -
Retained losses
Balance, beginning of year {268,813) (278,849)
Profit for the year 3,589 977)
Currency translation differences recognised directly in equity 601 1,061
Transfer from other reserves - 9,952
Balance, end of year (264,623) (268,813)

Total equity 71.788 67,598
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

17

2007 2006
Notes 5000 § 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit/{loss) 3,589 (977)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities
Net realised {gans) on sales of financial assets - (332}
Depreciation 79 97
Finance costs 11 1,371 5,363
Share based remuneration expense - 1,532
Retention and incentive award proviston 630 -
Other non-cash transactions (109) 1,387
Changes In
Loss and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 88,111 21,329
Deferred prermiums ceded - 5,444
Deferred acquisition costs - 4,999
Reinsurance balances recevable 23,025 44,261
Other recewables 481 (9,119)
Accrued nvestment income EEY (412)
Prepaid expenses and other assets {42) 24
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses (106,741) (183,623)
Unearned premiums - (20,828)
Reinsurance balances payable (32.839) (2,648)
Accounts payable and accrued hiabilities (2,942) 3,085
Cash {utlised) by operating activities {25,056) {130,418)
Cash flows from investing activities
Net proceeds from sales of financial assets - 23,874
Sate (purchase) of assets 1 (208)
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1 23,666
Cash flows (to0)/from financang activities
Payment of finance costs - (80)
Repayment of credit facihties (6.,165) {51,781)
Proceeds on 1ssue of shares - 37,082
Cash (used in) by financing activittes {6,165) {(14,779)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) {31,220) {121,531)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 234,335 355,886
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 203,115 234,335
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1 Going concern

GoshawK insurance Holding plc (the “company”} has no trading income and so has only the residual proceeds of the
recent nights issue to provide working capital Other than in respect of its UK subsidiaries the company cannot expect
to recewve distributions from within the group because the statutory solvency of Rosemont Re, its principal subsidiary,
has fallen below the minimurn tevel required of it by 1ts regulator, the Bermuda Monetary Authority (“BMA™), and so it
will require speafic consent before making any distributions There can be no certainty that the BMA would agree to
such a distribution

The independent actuary has produced a range of reserves for Rosemont Re The actuary’s resulting range from low to
high net estimates has reduced from $91m last year to $43m this year The range 15 provided In an attempt to quantfy
some of the uncertainty i estimating ultimate losses and does not present the bounds of all possible outcomes Indeed
it 15 possible that the final cost to settle clasms may still be more than available capstal resources Any increases in the
expected ultimate cost of Rosemont Re’s claims will reduce the likelihood of the BMA agreeing to any return of capital
prior to full run-off of all its outstanding liabilities

Furthermore, under the terms of the faclity agreement renegotiated with lenders on 23 August 2006, Rosemont Re 1s
required to maintain a mnimum level of net assets Following the work by the externa! actuary on the reserves of
Rosemont Re at 31 December 2006, 1t was recognised that the net asset value of Rosemant Re might fall below the
covenanted level requinng an amendment that was granted by the lending banks on 16 April 2007 An increase of no
more than 3 5% of the gross hiabilities ($5 8m} of Rosermont Re would cause the group to breach its covenant

Additional mterest 15 payable at a rate of 12 5% on the average pnnapal amount outstanding for the penod from
1 May 2008 to 30 Apnl 2009 This increase will place additional strain on group resources

Despite the uncertainty arising from the above matters, and having considered the likelihood of success of the possible
options avallable, including if necessary the sale of Rosemont Re, the directors are satisfied that the group 1s currently a
going concern and that the preparation of these accounts on that basis 15 appropniate

If the financial statements had not been prepared on a going concern basis it would have been necessary to make
adjustments to the carrying value of the assets of the group 1t would also be necessary to accrue for winding up costs
The financial staternents do not include any such adjustments

2  Accounting policies

2.1 Group and 1ts operations

The company, a public imited company incorporated and domiciled in the Urited Kingdom (“UK"), together with
its subsidiaries {collectively, “the group”) transacted reinsurance business through its Bermuda based subsidiary
Rosemont Re

Through Rosemont Re, the group provided catastrophe reinsurance of property and marine nisks worldwide As a result
of the 2005 hurncane losses to Rosemont Re, its subsequent credit rating downgrade and its inability to raise additional
capital or find a buyer, Rosemont Re was placed into run-off in October 2005

2 2 Basis of preparation

From 1 January 2005 all European Union listed comparues are required to prepare their consolidated financial
staternents using standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {"1ASB”) and endorsed by the
European Union These financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies set out below, which are
in compliance with Article 4 of the EU Regulation

In accordance with the standard for Phase | of insurance contracts, IFRS 4, the group has appled existing accounting
practices for insurance contracts

ftems mcluded in the financial statements of each of the group’s entiies are measured in the currency of the prirmary
economic environment in which that entity operates (the "functional currency”) The consohdated financial staterments
are stated in US dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the company and Rosemont Re, the main trading
subsidiary, 1s US dollars whilst the functional currency of the remaining subsidiaries 1s £ sterling Al values are rounded
to the nearest thousand dollars ($:000), also stated as 'k’, except when otherwise indicated
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2 2 Basis of preparation - continued

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following standards, which had not been applied in
these finanaial statements were in 1ssue but not yet effective

IFRS8 - Operating segments

IAS 1 — Amendment Presentation of financal staterments — A rewised presentation
tAS 23— Amendment Borrowing costs

[FRIC 11 — IFRS 2 group and treasury share transactions

[FRIC 12 — Service concession arrangements

IFRIC 13 — Customer loyalty programmes

[FRIC 14 — IAS 19 The imit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and therr interaction

Management does not believe that the application of these standards will have a financial iImpact on the finanaal
statements, except for the requirement of additional disclosures

2 3 Re-presentation of prior year comparatives

The accounting system previously used by Rosemont Re held balances on a broker by broker basis effectively netting
off the debtor and creditor balances of each cedant As part of the transition to run-off the orginal accounting
system has been replaced with one that does hold balances by cedant, so allowing a grossed up posttion to be
presented for both the current and pnior years with the result outlined in the table below

Resnsurance Rainsurance

halances balances

recevable payable

$ 000 % 000

Net recevable as stated in prior accounts 7,162 16,641
Creditor balances previously netted against premiums recevable 48,524 48,524
As stated 1n current accounts 55,686 65,165

A provision, predominantly in respect of the war consortium commussion, was previously presented within accounts
payable as a creditor The current presentation matches the provision against the asset and shows the asset net

Other Accounts

receivables payable

% 000 $/000

As stated in prior accounts 15,551 11,472
Debtor pravision previously presented within accounts payable (1,277} (1,277)
As stated in current accounts 14,274 10,195

2 4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting

The group has identified the accounting policies that are most significant to its business operations and the
understanding of i1ts results These accounting policies are those which invalve the most complex or subjective decsions
or assessments, and relate to the reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses and loss and loss adjustrment expenses
recoverable In each case, the determination of these is fundamental to the financal results and position and requires
management to make complex judgments based on information and financial data that may change in future periods

Since these involve the use of assumptions and subjective judgments as to future events and are subject to change, the
use of different assumptions or data could produce matenally different resulis

The measurement basis that has been applied in preparing the financial statements s historical cost with the exception
of finanoal assets which are held at farr value

The significant accounting pohaies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below

19
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies —- continued

(b) Basis of consolidation

These consolidated finanoal statements include the accounts of the company and all of its subsidianes Subsidiaries are
those entities In which the company has the power 10 exercise control over financial and operating policies in order to
gain economic benefits Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which effective controt was transferred to the
group and are excluded from consolidation from the date of disposal or when control no longer exists over financial
and operating policies

All inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation

{c) Segmental reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to
nisks and returns that are different from those of other business segments A geographical segment is engaged In
providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject to nsks and return that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic environments

{d) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the start of the month in which
the transaction occurred Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the
transiation of monetary assets and habifities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the income
statement

Income statements and cash flows of entities with a functional currency other than US dollars are translated into the
group’s presentation currency at average rates while balance sheets are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date Exchange differences ansing from the conversion of subsidianes with a different functional
currency are accounted for through reserves

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the average rate prevailing in the period i which the asset or
hability first arose

The year end rates of exchange actually used were

2007 2006 2005
£ Us$ 19900 19591 17208

{e) Reinsurance operations

{1} Premiums wnitten and ceded

Gross premiums written on non-proportional business were accounted for at inception of the contract on the basis
of the contractually stated mintmum and deposit premium, such amounts are then adjusted in accordance with the
contractural terms in later years as final premiums become known Gross premiums written on proportional busmess
are accounted for when reported to the company by the cedant or broker All premiums were recognised in income
on a pro rata basis over the perniod that the underlying coverage s provided All premiums are deemed to be fully
earned as the company ceased wniting new business in October 2005

Reinsurance premiums ceded were accounied for at inception of the contract on the basis of the contractually
stated mirumum and deposit premium, such amounts are then adjusted in later years in accordance with the
contractual terms All ceded premiums were fully earned at 31 December 2006

Reinstaternent premiums on both assumed and ceded business are esimated after the occurrence of a significant
loss and are accrued in accordance with the contract terms based upon estimates of ultimate losses assumed and
ceded

{n} Acguisition costs

Acguisition costs comprise reinsurance commissions, brokerage and FET in relation to assumed business written in
prior years Current costs are associated with adjustment prermiums recogrused duning the year and are expensed
when reported to the company by the cedant or broker




GoshawK insurance Holdings ple
Annual Report and Accounts 2007

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

(m) Losses and loss adjustment expenses

The reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses comprises amounts set aside for clarms notified and claims
incurred but not yet reported {IBNR) The reserve 1s set by management based on an actuarial review by therr
external actuary The actuarial eshmates are dernved using standard actuanal methods that produce loss estimates
based on assumptions of loss development patterns and initial expected loss ratios taking account of the histoncal
experience of the portfolio

The standard actuanal methods used produce results based on assumed development patterns for premiums, and
paid and incurred claims Development patterns and initial expected loss ratios are judgementally selected for each
underwriting year The main assumption underiying these techniques 1s that past claims expernence can be blended
with initial expectations to project ultimate claims costs Due to the relative lack of history, significant reliance on
benchmark development patterns is necessary

Specrfic adjustments are made for catastrophe losses Judgemental allowance 1s made for qualitative factors that may
affect the data Estimates for catastrophe losses take account of both loss reporting and anticipated cedant exposures
Owing to the one-off nature of catastrophic losses, a high degree of jJudgement Is required duning the early
development of these losses

Reserves are calculated allowing for reinsurance recoveries and a separate asset 1s recorded for the reinsurer's share of
incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses If a recoverable 1s impaired the group reduces 1ts carrying amount
accordingly and wili immediately recognise the impairment loss in the mcome statement A reinsurance recovery will be
deemed to be impaired If there is objective evidence that, as a result of an event that occurred after the initial
recognition of the recovery, the group may not receive all amounts due to it under the reinsurance contract, and that
the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the group will receive from the reinsurer

While the directors consider that the reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses is fairly stated on the basis of the
information avallable to them at the date of these financial statements, the ultimate hability will vary as a result of
subsequent information and events and may result in significant adjustments to the losses foreseen Any adjustment to
the amount of the reserve Is reflected in the accounts for the penod in which the adjustment 1s made

{f) Investment iIncome
Investment income consists of interest recevable for the period Interest income is recognised as it accrues, taking into
account the effective yield on the investment

{g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held at banks and in hand, deposits held on call with banks and other short-
term hughly quid secunities with less than ninety days matunity from the date of acquisiion For the purposes of the
cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents also incdude bank overdrafts, which are included within accounts
payable and accrued habilities on the balance sheet

(h) Financial assets

Investments

IAS 39 "Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement” permits entities to designate certain financial
nstruments as being held at far value through profit or loss The group has taken this option in respect of its financial
investments

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which 1s the date that the group commits to
purchase or sell the assets, at their fair value less transaction costs

The fair values of investments are based on quoted bid prices at the balance sheet daie where available

The fair value category 1s used as the group’ sirategy 1s to manage financial investments on a fair value basis
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies — continued

Loans and recewvables

Loans and recewvables, which predominantly relate to other recewables, are measured at fair value The assessment of
fair value takes into account, where appropnate, the length of time before a full recovery may be made Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the income statement where there 1s evidence that
the asset 1s imparred K in a subsequent penod the amount of the impairment loss reduces and the reduction can be
ascribed to an event after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised loss s reversed by adjusting the
allowance

{1} Income taxes and deferred taxation

The current tax expense 15 based on the taxable profits for the period, after any adjustments in respect of prior
years Tax, Including tax rehef for losses if applicable, is allocated over profits before tax and amounts charged or
credited to reserves as appropriate

Deferred taxation 15 recognised in respect of all taxable temporary differences that have originated but not reversed at

the balance sheet date where transactions or events have occurred at that date that wall result in an obligation to pay

more, or a nght to pay less or to receive more, tax, with the following exceptions

— prowvision 1s not made for deferred tax that would anse on the retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries where the
company has determined that these earnings will not be distributable in the foreseeable future, and

- deferred tax assets are recogrused only to the extent that the directors consider that it 1s probable that there will be
suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying temporary differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which
temporary differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

() Prepaid expenses and other assets

Prepayments are recognised as the fair value of expenses incurred that provide a clear benefit for future accounting
periods Depreciation 1s calculated on the straight line method to wnite down the cost of the asset to their residual
values over therr estimated useful lives as follows

Leasehold improvements Three years
Computer and office equipment Three years

{k) Loans payable
Loans payable are stated at fair value

() Dernvative hability

The warrants and potential warrants 1ssued to the company’s lenders under its credit facilities have been classified as
dernvative and embedded derivative hiabilities respectively and are carried on the balance sheet at fair value The
warrants and potential warrants will be classified as derivative liabilities until such time as they expire or that they
are settled by a delivery of shares

(m)Leases

Leases, where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership 15 retained by the lessor, are classified as
operating leases Payments made as lessees under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a
straight line basis over the period of the lease

{n) Employee benefits

Pension plans

The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme Once the contributtons have been paid, the group, as
employer, has no further payment obligations The group’s contributions are charged to the income statement in the
year to which they relate and are included in staff costs

{0} Offsetting of financial iInstruments

Financial assets and liabihties are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there s a
iegally enforceable nght to offset the recognised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the hability simultanecusly
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2 4 Summary of significant accounting pohcies — continued

(p) Current, non-current disclosure
The group does not present its balance sheet on the basis of current and non-current assets and liabiities as
presentation broadly \n order of liquidity 1s more relevant

3 Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements

The group makes estimates, assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and labdities
Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical expenence and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances The
most matenal area relates to the reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses which can be more or less than
adequate to meet eventual claims arising This area is covered in note 28

4 Segmental analysis

(a) Basis of segmentation

Business segments

The group’s segments reflect the way the business 1s managed Due to the size of the losses at Rosemont Re in respect
of catastrophes, these have been separately analysed in the income statement within net losses and loss adjustment
expenses All revenue and expenses are in respect of external parties

Geographical segments

The group has two geographical segments, being the UK and Bermuda All of Rosemont Re’s managment and
decision making 1s undertaken in Bermuda and almost all of the rest of the group’s activity 1s undertaken in the UK
The geographical segments are therefore consistent with the business segments, the one exception being the
finance costs which accrue to GoshawK Holdings (Bermuda) Limited (“GHB") a Bermuda registered company and
are presented separately




24

GoshawK Insurance Holdings plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

4 Segmental analysis — continued
(b) Business segmental analysis
Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2007

Rosemont Re Qiher Total
$ 000 $ 000 3000

Gross premiums wntten 2,848 - 2,848
Gross premiums earned 2,848 - 2,848
Net prermiums earned 2,018 - 2,018
Other income 10,847 6,247 17,094
Total net revenues 12,865 6,247 19,112
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses
~ Catastrophe 3,813 - 3,813
— Other (3,819) - (3,819
Finance costs - 1.371 1,371
Other expenses 11,376 2,782 14,158
Total expenses 11,370 4,153 15,523
Net profit before tax 1,495 2,054 3,589
Income statemnent for the year ended 31 December 2006

Rasemont Re Other jotal

$ 000 $ 000 $000

Gross premiums written 6,007 - 6,007
Gross premiums earned 26,835 - 26,835
Net premiums earned 18,838 - 18,838
Other income 12,662 12,095 24,757
Total net revenues 31,500 12,095 43,595
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses
— Catastrophe 12,744 - 12,744
~ Other 1,500 - 1,500
Finance costs - 5,363 5,363
Other expenses 17,554 7.411 24,965
Total expenses 31,798 12,774 44,572
Net loss before tax (298) {679 977)
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Rosemont Re Other Total
$ 000 $ 000 $ 000

Assets
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 44,386 - 44,386
Other assets 224,254 25,645 249,899
Total assets 268,640 25,645 294,285
Liabilities
Losses and loss adjustment expenses
— Catastrophe 82,248 - 82,248
- Other 84,563 - 84,563
Loans payable - 16,107 16,107
Other habilities 36,104 3,475 39,579
Total liabilities 202,315 19,582 222,497
Share capital and share premium 336,411
Reserves (264,623)
Total equity 65,725 6,063 71,788
Total habilities and equity 268,640 25,645 294,285
All assets and habilities are attnbutable to business segments
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2006

Rosemont Re Cther Total

Re-presented* Re-presented~

$ 000 $ 000 £000

Assets
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 132,497 - 132,497
Other assets 274,500 30,414 304,914
Total assets 406,997 30,414 437,411
Liabilities
Losses and loss adjustment expenses
— Catastrophe 168,070 - 168,070
- Other 105,482 - 105,482
Loans payable - 20,901 20,901
Qther habilities 69,215 6,145 75,360
Total habilities 342,767 27,046 369,813
Share capital and share premium 336,411
Reserves (268,813)
Total equity ,564,230 3,368 67,598
Total habilities and equity 406,997 30,415 437,411

* The re-presentation 1s discussed in note 2 3

All assets and habilities are attnbutable to business segments
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5 Net investment iIncome

2007 2006

$°000 5 000
interest earned on cash and cash equivalents 11,854 13,591
Total net investment income 11,854 13,591
6 Other income

2007 2006

$ 000 $'000
Deferred income from sale of GD2 3,830 7,730
War consortiurm commission 1,233 1,462
Other 21 -
Total other income 5,084 9,192

See note 16 for details on the sale of GD2

The war consortium commussion has ansen through GK Consortium Limited, a 100% UK domiciled subsidiary, that
managed a consortium to write war nsks on behalf of certain syndicates at Lloyd's, including syndicate 102 The

income recognised during the year relates to overnding and profit commission due to GK Consortium in respect of
the 2002 year of account and represents the remaining income that can be expected from this source

7 Net losses and loss adjustment expenses

2007

2006

$°000 $ 000
Losses and oss adjustment expenses paid and recovered
- Pad 105,295 194,723
— Recovered (86,377) (21,905)
18,918 172,818
Movement 1n provisions
- Losses and loss adjustment expenses (106,741) {187,623}
- Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 88,111 21,329
(18,630) {162,294)
Effect of foreign exchange movement (294) 3,720
Total net losses and loss adjustment expenses (6) 14,244
8 Net acquisition expenses
2007 2006
$ 000 $ 000
Acquisition expenses 1,540 2,379
Movement in deferred acquisition expenses - 4,999
Total net acquisition expenses 1,540 7,378
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9 General and administrative expenses

2007 2006
Notes $000 $ 000

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit work relating to the company 215 200
- interim review relating to the company 80 162
- audit work relating to audiing associates 427 887
Legal and professional fees 1,543 4,181
Depreciation on egquipment 7% 97
Qutsourced costs 4,835 1,376
Administrative expenses 1,421 3,222
Staff costs and other employee related costs 10 3,982 5,923
Other 36 1,539
Total general and administrative expenses 12,618 17,587

The definition of associates Includes subsidianies The interim review for the prior year was conducted by Ernst & Young,
the previous auditors Of the audit work within the comparatives, $620k relates to work by the current auditors, of
which $200k relates to work on the company

10 Staff costs and other employee related costs

2007 2006
$°000 $ 000
Fees and salanes
—n respect of directors 1,016 895
- other 1,837 2,781
Payroll tax and social secunty costs 176 284
Pension costs 136 152
Other
— share based compensation - 1,532
— provision for retention and incentive award 630 -
- other 187 279
Total staff costs and other employee related costs 3,982 5,923

The average monthly number of employees of the group dunng the year, including executive directors, was 6 (2006 9)

For additional information concerning individual director’s emoluments see the 'Directors’ remuneration report Al of
the pension costs relate to Rosermont Re

The retention and incentive award 1s discussed further in the directors’ remuneration report This 1s currently a provision
and will not be paid until a distribution, or proceeds of a share offer, In excess of the contractual minimum, 1s paid to
shareholders

11 Finance costs

2007 2006
$ 000 $ 000
interest expense on loans payable
- amounts repayable in more than one year but less than two years 1371 -
— amgunts repayable in more than two years but less than five - 5,363
Total finance costs 1,371 5,363

The interest payable on the loan under the facility agreement is payable at a rate of 2% above the London Inter-Bank
Offered Rate ("LIBOR"} for US$ Until 3 November 2008 $15m of the loan has been protected at 2% above 5 25%
foliowing the purchase of an interest rate cap From 1 May 2008 the rate 15 due to increase by 12 5% to 14 5% above
Us$ LIBOR
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12 Income tax expense
2007 2006
5000 $ 000
Movement in deferred taxation - -
Over prowvision on prior year's tax charge - -
Total tax charge - -
Group profit/loss) on ordinary activities before tax 3,589 {977)
Tax @ 28%/30% 1,077 {293)
Effects of
{Profits)/losses arising overseas not subject to UK tax (449) 1,674
Current year's losses not available for offset (628) (1,381)

Total tax charge - -

It should be possible to utilise the tax losses generated from the UK operations to the extent that there are future
taxable profits in the UK group against which the losses can be set However, as no UK profits are anticipated no
deferred tax asset 15 carrred on the group’s balance sheet in accordance with the accounting policy set out in

note 2 4() Profits generated from Bermudian operations are not subject to UK corporation tax other than to the extent
that they are rermitted to the UK The deferred tax asset not carned was $1,706k (2006 $1,238k)

13 Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at year end The basic and
diluted earnings per share have been presented as being the same because the outstanding warrants discussed in
noie 22 were significantly below their exercise price and therefore would not have been dilutive

2007 2006

$'000 $ 000
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Net profit/{loss) after tax 3,589 (977
At 1 January gross of EBT 879,620,395 175,924,079
Less held within EBT (2,262,273) (2,262,273)
Issued dunng the year - 703,696,316
At 31 December net of EBT 877,358,122 877,358,122
Weighted average common shares outstanding 877,358,122 318,313,035
Basic and diluted net profit per share — cents H (0}
14 Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable

2007 2006

$ 000 $ 000
Recoverable on paid losses 30,452 8,748
Recoverable on outstanding losses 13,934 123,749

44,386 132,497
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15 Remnsurance balances receivable

2007 2006

Re-presented*

$:000 $ 000

Reinstatement premiums recewvable 6,401 16,593
Other reinsurance balances recevable 26,260 39,093
32,661 55,686

* The re-presentation 15 discussed i note 2 3

Other reinsurance balances receivable includes funds advanced to cedants in anticipation of claims becoming payable
and drawdowns on letters of credit in excess of agreed claims

16 Other recevables

2067 2006
Re-presented*

$'000 $'000

Sale of GD2 13,704 9,873
War consortium commission - 3,818
Other 8% 583
13,793 14,274

* The re-presentation 15 discussed in note 2 3

Under the terms of the sale of GD2, all but £750k of the consideration was deferred until the benefit of the transaction
could be utihsed by the purchasers As such benefit was expected to accrue in instalments over a penod of at least two
years, It was agreed that as the purchasers utiised the benefit so they would deposit a pre-agreed percentage of that
benefit Into escrow

The money cannot actually be released to the company from the escrow account until the benefit to the purchasers
has become uncondittona! Techrically the first tranche of the two, ar more, tranches could have been received in the
first quarter of 2008 and the second tranche in the first quarter of 2009 However, at the time of writing the first
tranche has not been received but recent events suggest that most of it should have been received before the end of
2008

The company has assessed the value of the asset recognised by reference to the amounts paid into the escrow account
Although further amounts may be paid into the escrow account by purchasers, the company cannot assess these
additional amounts with any certainty, as it will be dependant on the circumstances of the purchasers

At 31 December 2007 the receipts into escrow, after adiusting for the time value of money based on when the asset 15
expected to be receved, along with the related interest being earned on the balances, totalled $18,727k

{2006 $13,745k) against which a provision of $5,023k (2006 $3,872k} s carried The provision aims to reflect the nisk
of non-recovery, and the costs associated with rmaking a recovery

The other recevable anses through Goshawk Dedicated Limited, a 100% UK subsiciary, that underwrote as a
corporate name on syndicate 1101 which is now in run-off but still has an open year

17 Prepaid expenses and other assets

2007 2006

£000 5 000
Prepaid expenses 66 -
Other assets 113 137

Total prepaid expenses and other assets 179 137

29
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18 Cash and cash equivalents

2007 2006
$°000 £ 000
Available for use within the group 7,745 10,729
Held within a subsidiary and unavaiable for use within the company 195,370 223,606
Total cash and cash equivalents 203,115 234,335

Of the cash and cash equivalents that are unavailable for use within the company, a significant portion 1s further
restricted by being pledged as coifateral for the specific claims obligations of Rosemont Re, see note 26(c)

19 Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses

2007 2006
Note $°000 $ 000
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses at 1 January 273,552 457,175
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable at 1 January (132,497) (153,826)
Total net reserve at 1 January 141,055 303,349
Change In reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses
Gross amount (106,741) (183,623)
Reinsurance recoverable 88,111 21,329
Net change in reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 7 (18,630) {162,294)
Total net reserves at 31 December 122,425 141,055
Loss and ioss adjustment expenses recoverable at 31 December 44,386 132,497
Total reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 166,811 273,552

Loss development triangle

Rosemont Re's first year of underwniting was 2002 and so the group has elected to disclose only six years of daims
expenence data in its loss development tnangles The disclosure will be extended for an additional year in each
succeeding year until the requirement for 10 years of information has been satisfied

The tables show the projected uluimate claims for each successive undenwniting year at each balance sheet date,
together with cumulative paid claims as at the current balance sheet date at constant exchange rates

Ultimate claims by Underwnting year gross of remnsurance

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

$000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $°000 $000
2002 underwnting year 65,942 129,635 221,625 165,166 158,698 165,059
2003 underwniting year 115,013 98,559 126,074 130,107 128,557
2004 underwnting year 58,625 104,485 113,200 113,555
2005 underwriting year 324,109 328,928 322,317

65,842 244,648 378,809 719,834 730,933 729,488
Cumulative paid claims to date {10,409) (90,803) (126,821) (262,659) {457,382) (562,677)

Gross hability in the balance sheet 55,533 153,845 251,988 457,175 273,552 166,811

The movement shown on the 2002 underwnting year between 2004 and 2005 mainly relates to the accounting
treatment of the reinsurance to close premium in respect of certan Lloyd's syndicates assumed through the Southern
Califorma Physicians Insurance Exchange {(“SCPIE”) reinsurances Separate to the premiums and claims reversals the
rermnaining business was settled favourably

The detenioration on the 2003 underwniting year between 2004 and 2005 was largely due to the Harco bail bond
losses
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19 Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses — continued

The deterioration on the 2004 underwriting year between 2004 and 2005 was due to the need to strengthen the
2004 catastrophe reserves, particularly for hurricane van and typhoon Songda The adverse movement hetween 2005
and 2006 was due to developrent on Harco

Ulumate claims by Underwniing year net of reinsurance
2002

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

5 000 § 000 $ 000 $000 $'000 $'000

2002 underwritng year 62,207 123,335 217,381 157,613 154,089 161,265
2003 underwriing year 114,489 98,201 125,196 129,229 127,884
2004 underwriting year 57,742 89,453 97,998 98,405
2005 underwriting year 186,459 187,928 181,685

62,207 237,824 373,324 558,721 569,244 569,239
Cumulative paid daims to date (10,409} (90,803) {(126,821) (255,372} (428,190} {446,814)

Net liability in the balance sheet 51,798 147,021 246,503 303,349 141,055 122,425

20 Reinsurance balances payable

2007 7006
Re-presented”
$'000 $ 000
Reinstatement premiums payable 4,273 16,642
Other reinsurance palances payable 28,053 48,523
32,326 65,165
* The re-presentation is discussed In note 2 3
21 Loan payable
2007 2006
$000 $ 000
Amounts repayable in
—in more than cne year but less than two years 16,107 -
—In more than two years but less than five years - 20,901
Total loans payable 16,107 20,901

On 1 January 2002 a letter of credit for £20m was provided by Bardays Bank plc, in favour of Lioyd's in respect of
the subsidiary companies of the company underwrniting as corporate members The letter of credit was secured by a
charge over a £5m cash deposit, by a guarantee and a debenture from the company, and all subsidiary companies
with the exception of Rosemont Re and GoshawK Security Insurance Limited, in respect of all the obligations of the
group to the Bank in respect of the LOC The guarantee was amended to restrict the lalulity of GoshawK Syndicate
Management Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company, to Barclays Bank plc to £50,000 under thius and the Term
Loan Faality described below

On 24 December 2002 Barclays Bank plc made available to the company a syndicated term loan facility for $40m

The faclity was secured by a guarantee and a debenture over the company and all subsidiary companies, with the
exception of Rosemont Re and GoshawK Secunty Insurance Limited, in respect of all the obligations of the company n
respect of the faclity On 2 Apnil 2003 Credit Lyonnais SA {now Calyon) joined the syndicate and made avallable a further
$25m Two scheduled principal repayments on the term faciity of $13m were made in December 2003 and December
2004 but not the repayment scheduled for December 2005 and so the $39m balance was consequently in default

On 18 December 2003, following syndicate 102 being placed into run-off on 30 October 2003, the group reached
agreement with Barclays Bank and Calyon to restructure the tetter of credit facility, whereby, in the event of a
drawdown, the obligation wouid be met through the conversion of the letter of credit into a loan repayable in two
equal annual instalments in 2008 and 2009 The group made full provision against drawings by Lloyd's on the
letters of credit at 31 December 2003

3
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21 Loan payable - continued

On 6 August 2004, following a cash call by syndicate 102, the funds at Lloyd's held under a covenant and charge by
GoshawK Insurance Haldings plc to support the underwriting of its corporate member subsidianies were released in
their entirety to Lioyd's in settlement of the cash call In addition the £20m Letter of Credit Faciity was also drawn

down by Lloyd's The borrowing in respect of the Letter of Credit was £15m, the balance of £5m having been
collateralised from the company's resaurces Borrowings under the letter of credit were to be repaid by not later

than the end of 2009

capital to repay the amount owing under the LOC drawdown described above

L
|
|
On 30 January 2008, following an application to the BMA, £15m was released by Rosemont Re as a return of ‘
|

On 27 October 2006, followtng receipt of the funds from the nights 1ssue undertaken in 2006, £0 8m and $24 7m
were repaid in fulfilment of one of the conditions precedent contained within the renegotiated loan facility of

23 August 2006

Following completion of the work by the independent actuary on the position at 31 December 2006, it became
possible that Rosemont Re might breach the covenant relating to its minimum level of net assets and so, after

renegotiation, the covenant was amended on 16 Apnil 2007

During the year ended 31 December 2007, following receipts deemed as ‘surplus cash’ under the renegotiated loan

agreement, a total of $6 2m was repaid to the lending banks

The loans are repayable on 30 April 2009 The group I1s required to make early repayment at the end of each relevant
year of any excess cash, being the amount (if any) for each financal year by which forecast expenditure exceeds actual
and anticipated expenditure The interest payable on the loans 1s payable at a rate of 2% above the relevant London
Inter-Bank Offered Rate on US$ Additional interest i1s payable at a rate of 12 5% on the average pnncipal amount

outstanding for the period from 1 May 2008 to 30 Aprl 2009

The narrative above can be summarised as follows

2007 2007
E'000 $ 000
August 2004 £ LOC facility drawn down 20,000
August 2004 £ collateral drawn down {5.000)
January 2006 capital sum repaid {15,000)
October 2006 accrued interest 808
October 2006 repayment made to fulfid condition of renegotiated loan (808)
Converted to US$ at year end rates - -
December 2002 $ term loan faality agreed with Barclays 40,000
April 2003 Calyon join syndicate 25,000
December 2003 first scheduled repayment made (13,000)
December 2004 second scheduled repayment made (13,000)
January 2006 working capital loan 1,000
August 2006 repayment (1,904)
QOctober 2006 repayment made to fulfil condition of renegotiated loan {23,200)
Accrued interest at 31 December 2006 6,005
Positton at 31 December 2006 20,901
January 2007 repayment (789)
April 2007 repayment (2,197)
luly 2007 repayment (784)
October 2007 repayment (2,395)
Accrued interest for the year 1,371

Total loan payable

16,107
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22 Denvative hability

Pursuant to some of the events included within note 20 above, the company I1ssued “A" warrants in £ Sterling to the
lenders participating in the credtt faciites over 5,277,722 ordinary shares representing some 3% of its 1ssued share
capital at 18 December 2003 The warrants can be exeraised at 35 25p, being the closing mid-market price of the
shares on 18 December 2003 The company issued a further 1,759,240 “B" warrants, on 1 January 2005 The “B”
warrants have an exercise price of 35 25p A further 1,759,240 “C” warrants were due for 1ssue on 1 January 2006,
these also had an exerase price of 35 25p as the credit facilites had not been repaid or terminated by 1 January 2006

The warrants have an ant-dilution protection in the event of a share reorganisation such as a rnights issue that allows
the exerase price to be adjusted to 22 21p The total warrants of 8,796,202 represent less than 1% of the shares in
issue The warrants were exercisable as follows

5,277,722 " A" warrants were exercisable from 20 December 2003 to 23 January 2008
1,759,240 "B" warrants were exercisable from 1 January 2005 to 23 January 2008
1,758,240 " C" warrants were exercisable from 1 January 2006 to 23 January 2008

As the exercise price significantly exceeded the share price of the company at the year end, the fair value remained
atnil No warrants had been exercised at 23 January 2008

23 Accounts payable and accrued habilities

2007 2006
Re-presented™
$'000 5 000
Accounts payable 1,067 2,887
Accrued expenses 3,802 4,933
Soaial secunty and other taxes 112 680
Provision for retention and incentive award 630 -
Other 1,642 1,695
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities 7,253 10,195
* The re-presentation 5 discussed in noie 2 3
24 Share capital
2007 2006
$ 000 $ 000
Authorised share capital
1,296,303,684 ordinary shares of 1p each 24,566 24,566
175,924,079 deferred shares of 4p each 13,336 13,336
37,902 37,902
Issued share capital
877,358,122 ordinary shares of 1p each 16,049 16,049
175,924,079 deferred shares of 4p each 12,873 12,873
28,922 28,922

All shares 1ssued are fully paid Of the 1ssued shares, 2,262,273 (2006 2,262,273) are held within an employee benefit
trust

At the EGM on 26 September 2006 the authonsed capital was increased to £20,000,000 dvided into 1,296,303,684
ordinary shares of 1p each and 175,924,079 deferred shares of 4p each by the creation of 750,000,000 ordinary
shares of 1p each

703,696,316 new shares were issued wia a 4 for 1 rnghts issued which closed on 18 Qctober 2007 The nights issue
rassed $39 5m gross, and $37 1m net of expenses The balance of the capital raised, not including the share capital,
$23 9m s induded in share premium

See also the discussion of the warrants in note 21
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25 Group undertakings

All direct subsidiaries operate in the United Kingdom, are incorporated in Great Bntain and are registered in England
and Wales, with the excepiion of GoshawK Secunty insurance Limited, which 1s incorporated and operates in the
Cayman Islands and GoshawK Holdings (Bermuda) Limited, which I1s incorporated and operates in Bermuda

Duect subsidiary Prinoipal actvity Propartion of ordinary shares held by the company
GoshawkK Syndicate Management Limited* Uoyd’s underwriting agent® 100%
GoshawK Capstal Limited Corporate member holding company® 100%
GK Consortium Management Limited Consortium manager? 100%
Goshawk Services Limited Service company 100%
GoshawK Secunties Lirmited Management service company® 100%
GoshawK Underwriting Limited Uoyd's service company’ 100%
GoshawkK Holdings {Bermuda} Limited Bermudian holding company 100%

= In addition all of the redeernable preference shares are held by the company
' These companies ceased their principal activity during 2003

GoshawK Holdings (Bermuda} Limited was incorporated on 11 February 2004

Rosemont Reinsurance Limited, was incorporated and operates in Bermuda, and was a 100% subsidiary of the company
until it was wholly transferred to Goshawk Holdings (Bermuda) Limited dunng 2005 for a consideration of $241m

GoshawK Dedicated Limited, the former parent of GoshawK Dedicated (No 2) Limited (“GD2"), was incorporated and
operates In the UK and 15 100% owned by the group through Goshawk Capital Limited GoshawK Dedicated Limited,
still has two open years on syndicate 1101 through its role as a corporate member

The company had given a guarantee under a deed of covenant to Lloyd's in respect of GD2, a former subsidiary The
total amount of the guarantee given by the company was £43,182,985 and Lloyd's had a fixed and floating charge
over the assets of the company to support this covenant The company had also guaranteed a £20m letter of credit
facihity provided by Barclays Bank plc m favour of Lloyd’s in respect, inter alia, of GD2 In the light of the underwnting
losses suffered by GD2, the company provided against these guarantees during 2003

26 Contingencies and commitments

(a) Legal proceedings and regulations

The group operates In the reinsurance industry and i1s engaged In several ongoing disputes with ceding companies In
the normal course of business

{(b) Lease obligations

2007 2006
$ 000 $ 000

Minimum lease payments for the following periods
Paid durnng the year 36 325
Within one year 106 187
Within two to five years 62 197
204 709

At the start of the year the group had two current lease obligations, one in London and one in Bermuda The London
lease was assigned on 29 June 2007 to a third party and a premium recerved such that the costs were exceeded by
$52k The on-going cost of office space 15 included within the outsource services provided The Bermuda lease was
signed 1 June 2006 for three years at an annual rent of $103k, subject to a cost of living increase On 1 October 2007
a sub-lease was signed with another Bermuda company for one year
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26 Contingencies and commitments - continued

{c) Collateralised funds

The group has given letters of credit and posted certain monies to escrow In the ordinary course of business The
following indicates the collateral amounts as at year end

2007 2006
5000 $°000
Collateral posted for letters of credit
— Comerica 110 15,755
- HSBC 32,000 60,000
SCPIE premiumn trust fund 29,511 36,686
Other monies in escrow or trust 4,364 14,136
Total value of collateral given 65,985 126,577

The HSBC letter of credit facility 1s non-revolving The SCPIE monies are held in trust by HSBC as security agamst
Rosemont Re's future obligations to SCPIE The other monies contain $3 8m held in escrow to secure Rosemont Re's
obligation to Harco

(d) Indemnity at Lloyd's

Following the sale of GD2 to a consortium, the company gave an indemrity to Lioyd's of $3 Om against any future
US federal income tax that may become payable should GD2 make any future profits taxable in the US This
indemnity has been fully provided for within the prowsion carried against GD2 of $6 6m

(e) Funds at Lloyd’s

A fixed and floating charge over the company’s investment portfolio and other cash assets together with letters of
credit secured obligations to Lloyd's in respect of underwnting activities of corporate member subsidiaries The total
guarantee given by the company under a deed of covenant was £43,182,985 The guarantee supported the
corporate members’ participations for the 1997 to 2003 years of account

On 6 August 2004, following a cash call by syndicate 102, the funds at Lloyd's held under a covenant and charge by
the company to support the underwniting of its corporate member subsiciaries were released in therr entirety to
Lloyd’s in settlement of the cash call In addition a £20m |etter of credit facility (see note 21} was also drawn down
by Lioyd’s The total funding requirement that had recourse to the company of £63,182,985 {($108,788,464) had
been provided for in the 31 December 2003 financial statements The company has recewved legal advice to the
effect that its hability in respect of its corporate member subsidiaries under the covenant and charge cannot exceed
£63,182,985 ($108,788,464) The directors of the company are of the opinion that, following the settlement of the
cash call, it settled 1ts full obhigations to Lloyd's in respect of its corporate member liabiliues

(f) Directors’ bonuses

50% of the annual bonuses potentially due to the company’ directors are deferred for two years and only due on
publication of the accounts for the relevant year, so long as the company is still solvent at that stage and the directors
are not bad leavers The value of this contingent hability 1s $418k (2006 $204k)

{g) Interest rate cap

On 10 October 2007 the company bought an interest rate cap with the Royal Bank of Scotland at the cost of $12 5k
The cap protects the group against increases of the rate quoted for US$ LIBOR, on which the cost of the group loans is
based The cap pays on a capital sum of $15m should US$ LIBOR nise above 5 25% between 1 November 2007 and

3 Novemnber 2008 At the balance sheet date the rate of US$ UBOR is less than 5 25% and so the farr value of this cap
15 nil
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27 Related party transactions

{a) Transactions with and balances from or to related parties

No such transactions took place duning the year Duning 2006, Phoenix Asset Management Limited, the company’s
largest shareholder, made available a loan faciity of up to GB£1m at an interest rate of 10% per annum The mories
were repaid in full before the end of 2006 from the proceeds of the nghts 1ssue along with the interest of GB£4 1k that
had accrued

{b) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management perscnnel of the group includes all directors, executive and non executive, and senior management,
including senior management of Rosemont Re The summary of compensation of key management personnel for the
year 1s as follows

2007 2006

$ 000 $'000
Salaries and other short terrm employee benefits 1,537 2,797
Pension benefits 118 104
Total compensation of key management personnel 1,655 2,901

28 Sigmficant post balance sheet events
There were no significant post balance sheet events

29 Risk management policies

(a) Governance framework

The pnmary objective of the governance framework 1s to protect the group from events that might hinder an orderly
run-off of its reinsurance activities or the realisation of its non-reinsurance assets

The group has established a run-off plan for Rosernont Re documenting clear terms of reference for its board, a clear
organisation structure and details of delegated authorities and responsibiliies The boards of both Rosemont Re and
the company have approved the run-off plan and meet regularly to approve any commeraal, regulatory or
organisational reguirements as they arise

,
(b) Capital management framework
The group’s capital management framework reflects the requirements of the relevant regulators its principal asset,
Rosemont Re 1s registered under the Bermuda Insurance Act 1978 (“the Act”) and related regulations Under the Act
Rosemont Re 1s required to maintain minimum statutory capital and surplus equal to the greater of $100m or 15% of
the net reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses For as long as Rosemont Re rermains below the regulatory
mimimum 1t will have to seek regulatory approval before making any distnibution or return of caprtal

As a consequence of the US hurrnicanes Rosemont Re was unable to meet the mimimum statutory requirement and so
was put into run-off on 18 October 2005 Subsequently, a run-off plan was established, a key component of which
was the liguidation of its investments into cash and cash equivalents to avoid hquidity risk or losses on investments

The Bermuda Monetary Authonity ("BMA”) is investigating the application of a more actuanal basis for the setting of
minimum solvency requirements, referred to as Enhanced Capital Requirements ("ECR™) Returns for the calculation of
these have to be filed for the year ended 31 December 2007 However, as Rosemont Re’s surplus remains below
$100m it 15 not anttapated that it would be able to make any return of capital on the basis of the current ECR

The group regards its capital as being the sum of its share capital, share prermmiurn and retained losses and does not
have any more complex instruments such as subordinated debt or cash flow hedges and this approach has been
consistent over the current and prior year As discussed in the first paragraph, an externally imposed capital
reguirement exists over Rosemont Re, to mantain a surplus of at least $100m, and this was not complied with
throughout the period
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29 Risk management policies - continued
The group’s strategy for holding cash is to preserve capital and to retain the ability to make timely commutation
settlements

(c) Regulatory framework
The group operates within the regulatory framewaork of the United Kingdom Listing Authority (“UKLA”), the Financial
Services Authonty ("FSA”} and the Bermuda Monetary Authorty ("BMA")

(d) Underwriting risk

Prior to going Into run-off Rosemcnt Re pnmanly underwrote a book of property and marine reinsurance business,
mainly on an excess of loss basis However, Rosemont Re also underwrote certain long-tail casualty nsks and satellite
exposures on both a proportional and an excess of loss basis The casualty nisks include workers’ compensation and
workers’ compensation occupational accident carve-out nsks The proportional business also included underlying
exposures to viatical nsks which are currently subject to dispute between our cedant and the underlying reinsured

Analysis of the reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses gross and net of reinsurance recoverables

2007 2007 2007
Gross Recoverable Net
$000 $'000 $000

Catastrophe 82,248 (39,919) 42,329

Other 84,563 (4,467) 80,096

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 166,811 {44,386) 122,425
2006 2006 2006
Gross Recoverable Net
$000 $000 $000

Catastrophe 168,070 (127,010} 41,060

Other 105,482 {5,487} 99,995

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 273,552 (132,497 141,055

The gross reserves contain a prowision for unallocated loss adjustment expenses This provision 1s calculated across the
book and allocated equally across the two categones The recoverable balance 1s shown after a provision for bad debt
which 1s allocated entirely to the catastrophes

{(e) Reserving risk

The estimate of ultimate kabilities requires significant judgment The following outhnes the nature of the significant
judgments involved in establishing such estimates and certain industry and company speafic factors that further add to
the complexity and subjectivity of the reserving process

I The group’s independent actuary projects current values for paid and reported fosses to their ultimate value using a
number of alternative actuanal methods that reflect historical pard and reported loss development expenence and,
for some methods, an expectation of underwnting profitability independent of actual loss experience Rosemont Re
was only in operation for 4 years and so has very hmited histoncal paid and reported loss developrnent to serve as a
reliable basis for estimating ulumate losses As such, the independent actuary has to rely on industry loss expenence
for each ine of business which may or may not be fully representative of the business written by Rosemont Re
Further, each estimation method may result In a matenally different projection of ultimate losses compared to
another estimation method The weights assigned to each estmation method are jJudgmentally deterrmined by the
independent actuary and wall vary over ime Greater weight wall be placed on Rosemont Re’s historicat paid and
reported loss expernience in the future as that data becomes more mature and reliable for making projecuons,

i Losses and loss adjustment expenses ansing from Rosemont Re's catastrophe exposures, i particutar hurricanes
Katrina, Rita and Wilma, are inherently difficult to estmate because of the severity of the events, their relauvely
recent occurrence and because, to a certain extent, the magnitude of such events 1s unprecedented,
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29 Risk management pohcies — continued

Vi

Vil

Uncertainty In the catastrophe related reserve estimates 1s increased by recent iigation in connection with
hurricane Katrina Such litigation relates pnimarily to the interpretation of flood exclusion language tn underlying
policies that cover property damage, although we are aware that there may be other dams for bad faith, etc So
far, the awards have generally confirmed the reliance on such exclusions, however, the courts have differentiated
between flood caused by the storm itself and “man made” fload as a result of the poor construction of levees that
falled to withstand the storm surge Further, the courts have often put the onus on the insurers to prove the
allocation of loss pertaining to wind vs fiood There is a further itigation pending and, of course, all cases are
subject to appeal At this stage, it 1s too early for Rosemont Re to determine the potential impact on its current
reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses The potential smpact on Rosemont Re's catastrophe reserve
estimates 15 exacerbated by the fact that signuficantly all of its reinsurance protection 1s exhausted,

While the reserving process 15 difficult and subjective for insurance companies, the inherent uncertainties of
estimating such reserves are even greater for remnsurers such as Rosemont Re due primanly to {a) the additional fag
in reporting loss information by the insurance company to their brokers and onto the rensurers {and possibly by
those reinsurers 1o their own reinsurers), {b) the necessary reliance on the ceding companies for information
regarding reported claims, (¢} diffening reserving practices among ceding companies, and {d) the diversity of loss
reporting and payment patterns among different types of reinsurance contracts or lines of business,

Our long-tall knes of business Include excess workers' compensation and occupational accident risks and viatical
exposures where specific losses may not be reported for a considerable period of time and the final settlement of
the loss may take even longer, in some cases in excess of 20 years after the loss event,

Inherent i the estimates of ulimate losses are expected trends in claim severity and frequency and other factors
which could vary sigruficantly as claims are settled Our long-tail business lines have extended loss settlement
perods and so additional facts regarding claims will become known and crcumstances may change throughout
such period, for example, changing government regulations, newly dentified toxins, newly reported claims, new
theones of liability, new contract interpretations and other factors could significantly affect future loss emergence
and the ulttmate costs of setthng claims,

Rosemont Re is engaged In several ongoing disputes with ceding companies in the normal course of business
Rosemont Re continues to reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses on all disputed contracts without regard
to the possibility of a favourable outcome However, the uncertainty surrounding such estimates is increased by the
fact that Rosemont Re may not have recetved current loss information from the ceding company dunng the penod
of the dispute and may not have had the opportunity to audit or otherwise review the reliability of such reported
information

The group recognises resinsurance recoveries when the associated loss 1s incurred Rosemaont Re has recorded amounts
recoverable from reinsurers of $44 4m {2006 $132 5m) at 31 December 2007 Such amounts are calculated in a
manner consistent with the underlying llabilities Rosemont Re remains hiable to the extent that the reinsurance
companies fail to meet their obligations and so aliowances are established for amounts deemed uncollectable
Rosemont Re regularly evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit nsk to
minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies

While the group has recorded its current "best estimate’ of its iabilities for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses,
it1s reasonably possible that these estimated liabiliies may increase or decrease in the future and that the increase or
decrease may be matenal to the results of operations and the solvency position of Rosemont Re Adjustments to the
amounts of the prowisions are recorded in the year in which they are determined
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29 Risk management policies - continued

Having reviewed all the ines of business, the independent actuary provides a best esumate, on which the group bases its
reserves, of the likely ultmate cost of the portfolio The group considers a ‘best estmate’ to be one that has an equal
likelihood of developing a redundancy or deficiency as the loss expenence matures The independent actuary also
develops a range of estimated ultimate losses as well as a best estimate for each program or line of business and selects
a low estimate and a high estimate for the total book of business after allowing for potential diversification effects across
vanous lines of business In the case of Rosemont Re the resulting low and high estmates were $25m below and $18m
above the group net reserves of $122m (2006 $141m) The range of estimated liabiities is provided tn an attempt to
quantify some of the uncertainty in estimating uttimate losses and does not present the bounds of all possible
outcomes

In respect of the US hurricanes, each 1% of deterioration in the group reserves Is expected to cost the group about
$09m (2006 %1 7m) on a gross basis and because the reinsurance in place 1s largely eroded by the current reserves,
any future deterioration s likely to result n a direct reduction of group net asset value as though gross equated to net

There are further reserves established for the legacy ssues underwnitten pnor to 1 January 2004 induding a number of materal
contracts such as reinsurances of SCPIE, Harco (pnmanly ball bonds), Everest Re (a qualfying quota-share reinsurance of the prior
managed Syndicate 102) and RMG (workers compensation} The biggest of these s the Southern Cahfornia Physiaans Insurance
Exchange (“SCPIE") which had sought to portfolio transfer their non-core wnitings to another camer Whilst careful analysis has
been undertaken to assess the hkely level of loss ulumately sustained, any of these legacy 1ssues have the potentat for further
deterioration A 10% detenoration in the other reserves set would result in additional losses of $7 3m There s no certainty that
any deterioration would be hmited to this level or that only a single contract would be found to be defigent in reserves |

Analysis by duration of expected maturity of reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses

2007 Within Beyond
Total 1 year 2-5 years 5 years
$000 5000 $000 $000
Catastrophe 82,248 (57,241) (25,007) -
Other 84,563 {27.979) (45,320) (11,264)
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 166,811 (85,220} (70.327) (11.264)
2006 Within Beyond
Total 1 year 2-5 years 5 years
$000 5000 £000 $:000
Catastrophe 168,070 {99,269) (60,118} (8,683)
Other 105,482 (27,982) (23,185} {54,315}
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 273,552 {127,251) (83,303) {62,998)

Thus analysts of expected matunty 1s produced on the basis of market benchmarks for this type of business and does
not try to reflect any commutations that may occur and which would usually accelerate maturity

Risk factors relating to the US hurricanes within the catastrophe reserves
The group adopts the following risk factors in analysing 1ts exposures

{a) due to the complex nature of the damms expected to anse as a result of the US hurricanes there can be no certainty
as to the ultmate labiliies and losses which will result to the group !t may be a number of years before the precise
nature and scate of the claims will be known,

(b} the assumptions used may ultimately prove to be incorrect and/or the methodology may prove to be inappropriate, |
() the full extent of business interruption losses which will be paid under direct property pohicies remains uncenain,

{d) the process of establishing estimates of losses emanating from inwards reinsurance business s more subjective than
establishing estimates of losses from direct insurance business This 1s because (particularly in the period immediately
following the toss) less reliance can be placed upon loss information which is received via reinsured companies than
upon information received directly from insureds,
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29 Risk management policies — continued

(&) allowance has been made in the estmation of tosses for the late reporting of losses which has been caused, in the
case of Hurncane Katrina, by the inability of insureds to return promptly to their properties, and in the case of Hurncane
Rita, by the unavallability of offshore loss adjusters It will be some time before losses are more fully reported and it is
possible that the full effect of the delayed reporting has not been taken into account in the group’s Current estimates,

(f) 1t1s possible that further legal action may be pursued either by individuals or on a class action basis or by varnious
state authorties in an attempt to render the intention and effect of floed exclusions in Insurance policies covenng
properties affected by the US Hurricanes null and void Should such action be successful then this would be likely to
have an adverse iImpact on the amount of the net loss currently estimated, and

(g) n calculating the net loss, consideration has been given to the ability and willingness of reinsurers 1o pay the
recoveries which will fall due from them In respect of the US hurrnicanes, and to whether the estabhishment of any
provision for potential bad debt is therefore appropriate The failure of any reinsurer to pay recoveries over and above
any such bad debt provision could have an adverse impact on the group’s result and net asset value

{f) Financial nisk

(1) Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fall to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial foss Credit nsk can anse on both the reinsurance and investment activities

Reinsurance activities

Ongnal premiums - credit nisk only applies during the grace pertod specified in the policy document, on the expiry of
which the policy may be terminated if the premium 1s still cutstanding As Rosemont Re s 1n run-off the exposure to
premiums has fallen over ime and 1s considered to be negiigible

Reinstatement premiums — these are always less than the inward claims in respect of which they are due and enjoy the
benefit of off-set against the onginal daim

Loss and loss adjustment expenses recoverable — are the biggest credit risk for the group especially in the wake of the US
hurricanes The following table provides information regarding the credit nsk exposure of the group at 31 December
2007 by classifying loss and loss adjustment expense recoverable according to credit ratings of the counterparties The
primary rating source Is Standard & Poor's Corporation (“S&P”) and AAA 1s the highest possible rating

Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable and reinsurance balances net of balances past due and
impaired analysed by Standard & Poor credit rating

2007 2006

5000 $ 000
AA 629 2,250
AA-— 9,978 40,231
A 11,249 26,464
A- 16,215 45,797
BBB+ 6,316 17,755
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 44,386 132,497
Retnstatement premiums receivable 6,401 16,593
A+ 5210 6,824
A- 9,490 5,634
A 4,593 7,721
NR 1,462 5,455
Other 2,877 2,727
Funds withheld 23,632 28,361
A+ - 815
A - 657
B+ - 3,188
Other - 7,639
Assumed balances receivable - 12,299

74,419 189,750
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29 Risk management policies - continued
At 31 December 2007 $6,790k (2006 3$3,401k) In respect of reinsurance balances were considered to be past due, In
that they had been outstanding for over a year

At 31 December 2007 $8,500k (2006 $7,000k) in respect of the amounts recoverable on outstanding losses and
reinsurance balances were considered to be imparred

No actual coliateral i1s held aganst any reinsurer, however, balances are shown gross of the assocated reinstatement
premium that 1s due on any recovery and which enjoys the nght of set-off in each case At 31 December 2007 $4,273k
(2006 $16,642k) were payable, see note 20

Investment activities

Prior to the end of 2005 the group elected to Iimit its credit exposure by helding all of its investments as cash Then
during 2006 the company elected to hrmit its credit exposure by placing sorne of its deposits with Lloyds TSB in
recognition of its AAA rating The institutions holding the group’s cash are set out below

Cash and cash equivalents by deposit taken

2007 2006

$'000 $ 000
HSBC plc 186,812 188,261
Comenca Inc 642 26,229
BB&T inc 3,832 3,703
RBS plc 5,729 10,729
Lioyds TSB plc 2,016 -
Other 4,084 5413

203,115 234,335

(2) Liquidity risk
Analysis by duration of expected maturity of the assets and habilities within the balance sheet

Within Beyond

Total 1 year 2-5 years 5 years

$'000 $'000 $°000 5000

Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 44,386 29,117 15,269 -
Reinsurance balances receivable 32,661 29,234 3,427 -
Other recewvables 13,882 8,205 5,677 -
Other assets 241 241 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 203,115 203,115 - -
294,285 269,912 24,373 -

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 166,811 85,220 70,327 11.264
Reinsurance balances payable 32,326 29,308 3,018 -
Loans payable 16,107 - 16,107 -
Other habihues 7,253 7,253 - -
222,497 121,781 89,452 11,264

Of Rosermont Re’s hquid assets of $191m, $34m are pledged as collateral against specific ¢laims oblgations and $32m
to support its |etter of credit facility, see note 25(¢)

None of the $191m of cash and cash equivalents held by Rosemont Re 15 availlable for use outside of Rosemont Re
without the pnor consent of the BMA, see note 28(b)

(3) Currency risk

The group's cash and cash equivalents are primanly denorminated in the same currencies as its habihities, which
mitigates much of the foreign currency exchange rate nsk Consistent with 1AS 21 ‘The effects of forexgn exchange
rates’ the share capital and share premium accounts are fixed at the rates prevalling at the date of conversion to US$

41
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29 Risk management policies — continued
The additional share capital and share premium paid 1n pursuant to the nights issue was converted at the rate of 1 79
prevailing at the time

Analysis by underlying currency of US$ denominated and non-US$ denominated assets and habilities

Uss Non-Uss 2007

denominated denominated Total

$'000 $'000 $°000

Assets 256,282 38,003 294,285
Liabilities (204,631) (17,866) (222,497)

Equity 51,651 20,137 71,788

uss Non-UsS 2006

denominated denomnated Total
Re-presented* Re-presented*

$'000 $°000 $ 000

Assets 395,251 42,160 437,411
Liabilities (348,652) (21,161} (369,813}

Equity 46,599 20,999 67,598

* The re-presentation Is discussed in note 2 3

For both assets and habiliies the majonty of the non-US$ denominated items are held in GBE The share capital and
contnbuted surplus of Rosemont Re are held entirely in US$ Therefore, the value of any return of capital, should one
be made, to shareholders 1s exposed to a weakening of the US$ Were the US$ to weaken by 10% this would reduce
the potential funds returned to shareholders by $2 5m

(4) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk 1s the rnisk that, because of changes in interest rates, the group’s investment income may fall or cost of
borrowings rise As the group does not discount any of its assets or habilities, with the exception of GD2, changes in
the interest rate would not effect the carrying value of those balance sheet items An increase of 5% to the discount
rate applied to GD2 would reduce its value in the balance sheet by $0 4m

On the year end cash balances of $203m, a 25 basis point reduction in the US Federal Reserve Rate would reduce
mvestment income by $0 5m per annum As all of the cash and cash equivalents have matunty peniods of 90 days or
less, any rate cuts will have an almost immediate effect Conversely, on year end borrowings of $16m, a 25 basis point
increase In the US$ LIBOR would cost the group an additional $0 1m per annum The maximum additional cost to
which the group 1s exposed has been iimited by an interest rate cap bought durning the year and discussed within

note 25(g)

As the borrowings reside in a different subsichary from the investments and the movement of funds within the group 1s
severely restncted the losses resulting from a rate increase could not be offset at a subsidiary level and so would place
sigrificant solvency strain on the group For this reason the company bought the interest rate cap on 27 October 2007,
discussed above
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF GOSHAWK INSURANCE HOLDINGS PLC

We have audited the parent company financal statements of Goshawk Insurance Holdings PLC for the year ended
31 December 2007 which comprise the balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 14 These parent company
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the group financal statements of Goshawk insurance Holdings PLC for the year
ended 31 December 2007 and on the information in the directors’ remuneration report that 15 described as having
been audited That report 1s modified by the inclusion of emphases of matter paragraphs

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, In accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them n an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparning the Annual Report and the parent company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice} are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibility 15 to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and
whether the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the directors’ report 15 consistent with the parent company
financial statements The information given in the directors’ report includes that specfic information presented in
the chairman’s and chief executive's statement that i1s cross referred from the enhanced business review section of
the directors’ report

In addition we report to youif, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider whether 11 15 consistent with the audited
parent company financal statements The other information comprises only the directors’ report and the chairman’s
and chief executive’s statement We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements Our responsibifities do not
extend to any further information outside the annual report

Basis of audit opimion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practuices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the parent company financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's arcumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary n order to provide us with sufficient ewdence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company
financial statements are free from matenat misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In
forming our opimion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent
company financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF GOSHAWK INSURANCE HOLDINGS PLC - continued

Opinion
in our opinion

- the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2007,

- the parent company financial statemeants have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act

1985, and

- the information given in the Directors’ Report 15 consistent with the parent company financial statements

Emphasis of matter - Going Concern

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the disclosures in note 1 to the accounts concerning the

ability of the company to continue as a going concern In note 1 the directors have descnbed the restrictions

surrounding the company’s working capital and the fact that the successful completion of any mitigating actions 1s

uncertain These conditions indicate the existence of a matenial uncertainty which may also cast significant doubt

about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern The finanaial statements do not include the
adjustments that would result if the company was unable to continue as a going concern

)céiﬂ? Tl an,

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered accountants and reqistered auditors
London, United Kingdoem

24 Apnil 2008
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006

Notes $000 $ 000
Fixed assets
Investments 4 36,834 40,145
Current assets
Debtors 5 47,458 37,609
Cash at bank and in hand 9,502 10,729
Net current assets 56,960 48,338
Total assets 93,794 88,483
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Other creditors 7 11,732 10,904
Accruals 7 1,557 1,707
Current liabilities 13,289 12,611
Total assets less current habilities 80,505 75,872
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Loans payable 8 8,717 8,274
Net assets 71,788 67,598
Capital and reserves
Share capital 9 28,922 28,922
Share prermium 10 307,489 307,489
Reserve for own shares 10 - -
Profit and loss account 10 {264,623) (268,813)
Shareholders funds 71,788 67,598

The accounting pehicies and notes on pages 47 to 50 are an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for release by the board of directors on 24 Apnl 2008 and

were signed on 1ts behalf by

ixon-Clarke
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Going concern

GoshawK Insurance Holdings plc (the “company”) has no trading income and so has only the residual proceeds of
the recent nghts 1ssue to provide working capttal Other than in respect of its UK subsidiaries the company cannnot
expect to receve distributions from within the group because the statutory solvency of Rosemont Re, its principal
subsidiary, has fallen below the minimum level required of 1t by its regulator, the Bermuda Monetary Authonty
("BMA™), and so it will require speaific consent before making any distnbutions There can be no certainty that the
BMA would agree to such a distnbution

The independent actuary has produced a range of reserves for Rosemont Re and this year, the actuary’s resufting
range from low to high estimates has reduced from $91m last year to $43m this year The range i1s provided in an
attempt to quantify some of the uncertainty in estmating ultimate losses and does not present the bounds of all
possible outcomes Any increases in the expected ultimate cost of Rosemont Re’s claims will reduce the hkelihood of
the BMA agreeing to any return of capital prior to full run-off of all its outstanding habilities

Furthermore, under the terms of the facility agreement renegotiated with lenders on 23 August 2006, Rosemont Re
15 required to maintain a mimmum level of net assets Following the work by the external actuary on the reserves of
Rosemont Re at 31 December 2008, it was recognised that the net asset value of Rosemont Re might fall below the
covenanted level requinng an amendment that was granted by the lending banks on 16 Apnl 2007 An increase of

no more than 3 5% of the gross liabilities (35 8m) of Rosemont Re would cause the group to breach its covenant

Additional Interest 1s payable at a rate of 12 5% on the average prinapal amount outstanding from 1 May 2008 to
30 Apnil 2008 This increase will place additional strain on group resources

Despite the uncertainty ansing from the above matters, and having considered the likelihood of success of the
possible options available, including if necessary the sale of Rosernont Re, the directors are sausfied that the group 1s
currently a going concern and that the preparation of these accounts on that basis 1s appropriate

If the financial statements had not been prepared on a going concern basis it would have been necessary to make
adjustments to the carrying value of the assets of the company It would also be necessary to accrue for winding up
costs The financial statements do not include any such adjustments

2 Accounting pohices

The requirement to adopt Internatronal Financial Reporting Standards (" IFRS”) for the year ended 31 December
2007 does not yet apply to the company accounts and so they continue to be prepared under UK GAAP The
company has applied the historical cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of fixed asset investments,
In accordance with Section 226 Schedule 4 to the Companies Act 1985

(a) Basis of preparation

No profit and loss account is presented for the company as permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985
The company 1s taking advantage of the FR529 2d exemptions on disclosures as a result of it being included wathin
the consolidated group accounts

(b) Exchange rates

Assets, habilities, revenues and costs denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling
at the dates of transactions At the balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities are transtated at the year end
rates of exchange Exchange profits or losses ansing from transactions are taken to the profit and loss account

(¢} Investments
Shares in subsidiary undertakings are shown at net asset value, which 1s deemed to approximate to the amount
recoverable Permanent diminutions have been charged to the profit and loss account

{d) Loans payable
Loans payable are stated at cost

(e) Derivative iabihity

The warrants and potential warrants ssued to the company's lenders under its credit facilities have been classified as
derivative and embedded dervative liabilities respectively The warrants and potential warrants will be classified as
derivative habilines until such time as they expire or that they are settled by a delivery of shares As the exercise price
significantly exceeded the share price of the company at the year end, the far value remained at nil
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Accounting policies - continued

(f} Own shares

The cost of providing equity compensation plans is based on the fair value of share awards at the date of grant The
cost 15 charged to the profit and loss account over the expected vesting penod of the awards and credited to the
reserve for own shares, part of shareholders’ funds

(g} Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation 1s recognised 1n respect of all iming differences that have onigmated but not reversed at the

balance sheet date where transaction or events have occurred at that date that will result in an obligation to pay

more, or a right to pay less or to receive more, tax, with the following exceptions

— provision 1s made for deferred tax that would arise on remittance of the retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries
only to the extent that, at the balance sheet date, dividends have been accrued as receivable, and

— deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it 1s more likely than not that
there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be
deducted

Deferred tax 15 measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in
which timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date

{h) Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the term of the lease

3 Dwvidends
No dividends were declared in either 2007 or 2006

4 Investments In subsidiary undertakings
The table below shows the carrying value and cost of these investments as at the dates indicated All investments
are held at current net asset value unless otherwise indicated

2007 2006
5000 $ 000
Cost of investments at 1 January and 31 December 241,499 241,499
Value of investments at 1 January 40,145 41,303
Imparment loss charged to profit and loss (3,317) (1,158)
Value of investments at 31 December 36,834 40,145
Further details of subsidianies are disclosed within note 24 of the group accounts
5 Debtors
2007 2006
$ 000 $ 000
Amounts due from Goshawk Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd 32,125 25,785
Amounts due from other group undertakings 40 1,366
Sale of GD2 13,704 9,873
Other debtors 1,689 585
47,458 37,609

The amounts due from GoshawK Holdings (Bermuda) Limited reflect amounts paid to the lending banks in order to
redeem the group loan, see note 21 of the group accounts

The sale of GD2 1s discussed in note 16 of the group accounts
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6 Deferred taxation

It should be possible to utilise the tax losses generated to the extent that there are future taxable profits against
which the losses can be set However, given that the company has no income of its own and cannot anticipate
dividend payments from any of its investments, no deferred tax asset I1s carnied on the group’s balance sheet in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in 2{g) The potential deferred tax asset1s 51,706k {2006 $1,238k)
ansing primanly from the impairment loss of the company’s investments

7 Other creditors and accruals

2007 2006
$°600 $ 000

Amounts falling due within one year
Other creditors 9 1,190
Amounts due to group undertakings 11,723 9,714
Accruals 1,557 1,707
13,289 12,611

The amounts due to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and cannot be called without the written
agreement of the company

8 Loans payable

2007 2006
$'000 $ 000

Amounts falling due

In more than two years but not more than five years 8,717 8,274

Amounts falling due after more than one year 8,717 8,274

During 2006 all inter-company balances due to Rosemont Re were formalised into a loan, repayable not before
three years {and then only subject to the company having sufficient working capital) at an accrued rate of interest of
5 5% per annum

9 Share capital
2007 2006
$'000 1 000

Authonsed share capital
1,296,303,684 ordinary shares of 1p each 37,902 37,902
175,924,079 deferred shares of 4p each - -

issued share capital
877,358,122 ordinary shares of 1p each 28,922 28,922

All shares 1ssued are fully paid Of the 1ssued shares, 2,262,273 (2006 2,262,273) are held within an employee
benefit trust

At the EGM on 26 September 2007 the auvthorsed capital was increased to £20,000,000 divided into 1,296,303,684
ordinary shares of 1p each and 175,924,079 deferred shares of 4p each by the creation of 750,000,000 ordinary
shares of 1p each

703,696,316 new shares were 1ssued via a 4 for 1 nghts issued which closed on 18 Gctober 2006 The nights i1ssue
raised $39 Sm gross, and $37 1m net of expenses The balance of the capital raised, not including the share caputal,
$23 9m 15 included in share premium

See also the discussion of the warrants in note 21 of the group accounts
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 Shareholders’ funds
For the year ended 31 December 2007

Reserve

Share Share for own Profit &
capital premium shares Loss Total
$ 000 3000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000
At 1 January 2007 28,922 307,489 - (268,813) 67,598
Profit for the year - - - 4,190 4,190
At 31 December 2007 28,922 307,489 - (264,623} 71,788
Reserve
Share Share for own Profit &
capital premium shares Loss Totat
$ 000 $ 000 £ 000 $ 000 1 000
At 1 January 2006 15,745 283,584 (1,335} (269,309) 28,685
Profit for the year - - -~ 1,831 1,831
Write off share based compensation - - 1,335 {1,335) -
Rights 1ssue 13,177 23,905 - - 37,082
At 31 December 2006 28,922 307,489 - (268,813) 67,558
11 Guarantees given by the company
See notes 21 and 26 within the group accounts
12 Share option schemes
All options granted under both the approved and unapproved scheme are considered to have lapsed
13 Leasing commitments
Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating teases are as follows
Land and bulldings
2007 2006
$°000 $ 000
Operating leases which expire
Within 1 year - 136
136

14 Significant post balance sheet events
There were no significant post balance sheet events
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